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Section 403(b) Tax-Sheltered Annuities

Certain governmenial entitics offer Section 403(b) tax-sheltered annuties to their employees.  The IRS has
developed an examination program for employers who offer these annuitics. To date, examinations have uncovered
many deficiencics in employers' plans. These deficiencics have included exceeding the various contribution limils
noncompliance with distribution requircments, inadequate salary reduction agreements, and failure (o offer universa!
availability of salary reduction programs (duc to impermissible eligibility restrictions, mandatory contributions, and
participant exclusions). Sizable asscssments against thesc employers have been common as a remedy to prevent
the programs from being declared taxable.

The TRS's Tax-Sheltered Annuity Voluntary Correction (TVC) program, which began in 1995, gives plan sponsors
of Scction 403(b) annuity plans the opportunity to voluntarily correct any plan defects. The program was scheduled
to conclude October 1996, However, the IRS has recently announced that the program has been extended until
December 31, 1998 Use of the TVC program may result in significantly reduced scttlements with the 1RS.
compared to asscssments based on deficiencies discovered during audits performed by the IRS.

JRC Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans

Many state and local governments have established deferred compensation plans for their employees under the
provisions of IRC Section 457. The recently passed Small Business Job Protection Act of 1996 includes a provision
that will requirc these plans to hold all asscts in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiarics
This new requirement gencrally is cffective for assets and income held by IRC Scction 457 plans on or afler
August 20, 1996. However, for plans in existence before August 20, 1996, a trust need not be established before
January 1, 1999. Before this new legislation, the amounts deferred under an IRC Section 457 plan were, much to
the dismay of the employecs, legally the property of the governmental employcr.

Again, the above ilems are matters we belicve you should be aware of that could agsist in the operations of the
School Board. The inclusion of ilems on pages 4-6 arc informational and does not indtcate that the situation exists
at thc School Board.

We hope the suggestions on the previous pages are useful 1o you.

This report is intended solely {or the use of the Board Members, management, Louisiana Department of Education.

U. S. Department of Education and other applicable federal agencies, and should not be used for any other pueposc
This restriction 1s not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matler of public record.

1 YN
/& MO}: /ég“m-z,-—f 4 &’y’ ""‘7,
ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP

Monroe, Louisiana
October 16, 1997
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Year 2000 Compliance (Continued)

Softwarc and cven hardware vendors should be contacted immediately, if they have not alrcady been contacted. (o
determine the requirements of making the computer system Ycar 2000 compliant.  Plans should be drawn up with
the assistance of vendors and/or a consultant 1in Year 2000 comphance and closcly monitored to assurc that the
School Board's system will not suffer a crisis. We would suggest that agreements or assurances should be attamed
from the softwarc/hardware vendors regarding their ability to make their systems Ycar 2000 compliant, It may be
that your system 1s Year 2000 compliant.

Retirees Returning to Work

The most scvere penalty that we have noticed during our firm's career in auditing School Boards is the penalis
imposcd by the Tecachers' Retirement System of Louisiana (TRS) upon School Board for therr fatlure to reporl
annually the TRS retirees working at the School Board. The penalty 1s figured as though the employec ts subjcct
to paying relirement, resulting in the School Board paying the amount that would have been withheld for a regula
cmployee plus the ecmployer's portion.  The penalty works oul 1o be approximately 25% of the retirees’ wages and
is paid entirely by the School Board. The TRS will asscss the penalty for however many years the annual reporis
were not {iled. You should ascertain that annual reports were filed.

Employees Being Treated as Contract Labor

Frequently at School Boards our firm audits we are nolicing employecs being paid amounts outside of the salars
schedule for extra dutics, altending after-hours seminars and ctc. Further, we somcetimes sec these amounts beiny
paid by a vendor check which bypass the amounts being subjcct to payroll tax and related regulations. Only 10 vers
rarc instances can an cmployce of the School Board be treated as an independent contractor. The mstances are so
rarc, in fact, that we would suggest you check with the Internal Revenue Scrvice or us before treating an employee
as an independent contractlor.

SEC Municipal Bond Disclosure Requirements

In responsc to concerns aboul the municipal sccurities market, the Securitics and Exchange Commission (SEC)
issucd a final rule entitled Municipal Securities Disclosure that became cffective on July 3, 1995 (Scction 17, Code
of Fedcral Regulations (CAR), Part 240, Release No. 34-34961). The final rule amends Rule 15¢2-12 under the
Sccuritics Exchange Act of 1934 and ailtempis to deter fraud and manipulation in the municipal sccuritics market
by prohibiting the underwriting and subsequent recommendation of securitics for which adequate information 1s not
available. The SEC issucd Interpretive Relcase No. 33-7049 (Scction 17, CAR, Parts 211,231, and 241) Statemer
of the Commission Regarding Disclosure Obligations of Municipal Securities Issuers and Others. This mterpretinvg
relcasc s cited m the above-described final rule as a source of guidance on the disclosure obligations of issucrs of
municipal sccuritics and 1s intended 1o assist mumicipal securities issuers, brokers, and dealers in meeting thens

obligations under the anti fraud provisions of the securities laws.

Further, the SEC's actions will lead to contractual requircmicnts for 1ssuers that may govern, among other things
required financial information and audit requirements.
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The following 1tems arc maiters we belicve you should be aware of that could assist in the operations of the Schoo!
Board. The inclusion of items arc informational and docs not indicate that the situation exists at the School Board

Y . ——

OMB Circular A-133

All School Boards became subject to U. S, Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 and OMB
Circular A-133 Provisional Compliance Supplement for the first time for the fiscal year that recently ended. As pant
of these audit regulations which resulted from the passage of the Single Audit Act Amendment of 1996, there 15
D¢ Facto incentive to the School Board. More audit work will be required annually in the federal program arca [o
a government that falls outside the low-risk auditce classification as defined by OMB. ltems that prevents a Schoo!
Board from being treated as a low-risk auditee 1s if the School Board had reporteble conditions (internal control
wcaknesses) that were considered material weaknesses and material compliance (violations of laws, rcgulations
contract provisions, cic.) findings.

Another matter resulting from the change 1 audit regulations from OMB Circular A-128 (old audit regulations) 1.
OMB Circular A-133 is the establishment of a $10,000 thresheld for reporting questioned costs. Previously therc
was no minimum requircments which resulted in some {indings being reported that were fairly insignificant in the
scheme of the School Board's operation.  The ¢stablishment of the $10,000 threshold will result in Iess findings i
the singlc audit reports. That is the good news! The bad news 1s that the findings that arc included in the report will
take on incrcased importlance. There will be more interaction between the federal agency that provided the fundiny:
for the {ederal program and the School Board and the auditors. In fact the new Data Collection Form (transmit(;)
form that i1s submitted with all single audit reports) will include name, address, tclephone and E-mail addresses To
both the School Board and the auditor. Included with each finding in the single audit report 1s this samce information
for the person assigned responsibility for the corrective action planned for each findiag,

Finally, the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 included a provision that the federal agency has access to the
auditor's work paper 1n order 1o resolve audit findings. Previously, auditors were somewhat reluctant 1o relcase audit
work papers that could be used by the federal agency (o the detriment of the School Board {or matters involving
questioncd costs charged to a federal program. However, now there 1s no choice by the auditor. The federal agenc
has access as per federal law.

Year 2000 Comphance

The turn of the century wall be an exciting time for many, but could turn into a disaster unless plans have been made
concerning year 2000 compliance for many School Board's computer systems.  The basic problem lics 1 the way
most computer software, both operating systems and application programs, calculat: dates. Most programs usc tw .
digits to represent the last two years of the 19X X dates, therefore the programs are conditioned to expect date-
between the year 1900 and 1999, If dates for the year 2000 are entered into these noncompliant programs, the
prograras will assume the year 2000 to be the year 1900. Many arithmetic calculations, such as duc dates and
interest calculations, will therefore be incorrect. The impact of this problem, if not corrected, could be that the
entire computing system would ccasc to function, This would obviously cause tremendous problems in importand
arcas such as accounts payable and payroll just to name a few.
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amount of fucl used and miles per gatlon cach timce fuel is received. Exception reports reflecting discrepancies
will be provided. We belicve a new fuel management system will address the findings in the audit.

On November 19, 1997, the Caddo Parish School Board authorized staffl 1o take bids for the new fuc
management system.

We have also included management's responses 10 our conunents and recommendations.  We have performed no
audit work to venfy the content of the responses.

QOur audit procedures arc designed primarily to enable us to form an opinion on the financial statements and
therefore, may not reveal all weaknesses in policies and procedurcs that may exist.

FAMORIQUEAWPSNDOCSWCCWCADNDO PSBUYTMANAGLTR WPD
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2. School Activity Funds {(Continued)

The Internal Audit staff may want to revisit their practice of auditing transactions for all years since the last
audit. It may be more prudent to audit only the last year or two years of transactions at a school. If problems
arc. encountered the audit could be extended backward to cover transactions for all years since the last audit
The dollar amount of annual receipts or disbursements at cach school should be considered if” a change 1s madc
in the current practice.

This suggested practice would permit the internal audit department 1o audit more schools annually.

Management’'s Response: Transactions are statistically sampled for each year audited. Changes m audit-
have been implemented as a result of several incidents where thefl of school funds was found. We arc now
making a surprise cash audit of every school every year, which we feel will help us detect problems soonc
Since we arc now at full staff with our auditors, we have been able to reduce the time between regular audits
After this year's audits are completed, no school should have more than three years between audits.

3. Transfers of Momes Between Funds

Comment: As a routine matter the School Board transfers monics betwzen funds. In most cascs the
bookkeeper for the receiving fund 1s different from the bookkeeper for the disbursing fund. A review of the
handling of the accounting in both funds should be made in order to assure that the accounting is compatible
In other words, if one fund bookkeeper treats the transfer as an operating transfer, the other bookkeeper musl
then treat the fransaction as a transfer. 1f one bookkecper treats the transaction as a reimbursement, the othes
bookkeeper must treat the transaction as a reimbursement. There were a few inconsistencics noted during the
audit.

Budgeting practice should mirror the accounting for these transfers.

Management's Response: The transfer of momes between funds will be monitored by the senior accountant~
{0 insure that all transfers arc properly resolved.

4. Fuel Monitoring

Comment: Examination of the intcrnal audil report concerning fucl monitcring indicated there were som.
difficulties reconciling fucl Ievels (o fucl consumplion. The report indicated that fuel requisition procedurcs
may not be followed in all cascs, which could lead to such discrepancies. Quarterly audits of this situation
should be conducted untal such time as a history of tolerable variance is achieved.

Management's Response: Environmental Protection Agency regulations require the Caddo school svsten
to upgrade or replace its fuel storage tanks by December 1998, In conncction therewith we are in the process
of cvaluating various ways to meci our fucling needs.

All of the oplions we have reviewed to date mnclude an automated fucl control system, We expect 1o implement
a system that will \dentify by vehicle and dnver quantity of fuel pumped. Reports will reflect miles driver
amount of fuel used and miles per gallon cach time fucl is received. Exception reports reflecting discrepancic-
will be provided. We belicve a new fucl management system will address the findings in the audit.
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Board Mcmbers
Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

In planning and performing our audit of the gencral-purposc financial statements of Caddo Parish School Board for
the year ended Junc 30, 1997, we considered the School Board's internal control structurc Lo plan our auditing
procedures for the purpose of cxpressing our opinion on the financial statcments and not to provide assurance on
the internal control structure.

However, during our audit, we noted ccrtain matlers involving the miternal control structure and other operational
maticrs that are presented for your consideration. This letier docs not afiect our report dated October 16, 1997, on
the financial statements of Caddo Parish School Board. We will review the status of these comments during ow
next audil engagement. Our comments and recommendations, all of which have been discussed with appropriate
mcmbers of management, are intended to improve the internal conirol structure or resull in other opcrating
c{ficicncics. Wc will be pleased 1o discuss these comments in further detail at your convenience, 1o perform any
additional study of these matlers, or to assist you i mmplementing the recommendations.  Our comments are
summarizcd as follows:

1. Internal Audif Procedures Concerning Fixed Assets

Comment: An cxamination of internal audit reports concerning verification ol the fixed asset listing indicated
some problems may exist with the histing. Scven items, or eightecn pereent of the forly items sclected (o
examination, were not found. The audit reports seerncd 1o indicate that the items had been serapped but had
nol been removed from the listing.  This could possibly indicatc that the listing docs not accurately rcflect the
fixed assets of the School Board.

Management’s Response: The accounting department is n the process of Initiating procedures to verify and
updatc fixed assct inventory records. This procedure will involve cach site or location updating its mventon
listings for additions, changes, delctions and retirees. Lastings will be returned to the accounting departmenit
for the purposc of updating inventory records.

2. School Activity Funds

Comment: An cxamination of a samplc of school activity fund internal audit reports for the fiscal year ended
Junc 30, 1997 revealed two instances where school funds were unaccounted for. Audit conclusions scemed
{0 indicate that internal controls al these schools could be improved, which may have contribuled to the
problem. In addition, becausc of the large number of schools, yearly audits of cach school 1s not practica!
Accordingly, audits of some schools when performed may cover a time period of up to six to cight years. This
mcans that when some audits are performed, an enorimous number of transactions have probably occurred
In some cascs, the personnel responsible for the bookkecping will no longer be employed by the school  This
would incrcasc the difficully of the audit and could allow weak internal controls to go unchecked.

FAMONIQUESWPSIDOCSWC O ADDO PRV TWMWMANAGLTR WED

Member: American InsUiute of Certified Public Accountants, Society of Louisiana Certified Public Accountants and
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We were not engaged to, and did not, perform an examination, the objective of which would be the
expression of an opinion on management's assertion. Accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention
that would have been reported to you.

This report is intended solely for the use of management and the Board of Caddo Parish School
Board and should not be used by those who have not agreed to the procedures and taken
responsibility for the sufficiency of the procedures for their purposes. lHowever, this report is a
matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

Allen, Green & Company, [LLFP

Morroe, Louisiana
October 16, 1997
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PROCEDURES

Pursuant to LLSA-R.S. 17:408.1 C

Randomly select and test twenty-five disbursements (assuming there are this number of
dishursements during the period ended June 30, 1997) from the fund to determine that the
expenditures complied with the following statute stipulation:

The earnings were expended solely for the purposes of instructional enhancement as defined
below:

Enhancement may include

® Provision for materials and supplies, including computers and other techno-
logical upgrades:

® Training for students, faculty, and administrators on the use of materials
®  Professional development of teachers
® Establishment of exemplary programs of instruction

Enhancement may not include

@ Costs of additional administrators

® Increases in salaries or benefits for employees, or maintenance or custodial costs

Determine that the following statement is true:

The audit of the Caddo Parish School Board specifically addresses compliance with the
provisions of Act 743 of 1995,

FINDINGS

There were no findings noted in the above procedures.
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PROCEDURES

Pursuant to 1.SA-R.S. 17:408.1 A

Test the fund's records to ascertain that the following five statements are true:

[ T

1. The Caddo Educational Excellence Fund was established.

2. The fund is a permanent trust fund.

3. The bank account is in the official repository of the Caddo Parish School Board.
4. The account was held and mvested on behalf of the Caddo Parish School Board.

5. The investment income was withdrawn by the Caddo Parish School Board only during
January of the calendar year.

Pursuant to LSA-R.S. 17:408.1 B

Test the fund's records to ascertain that the following two statemerits are true:

1. The monies were invested in the same manner as monies in the state general fund are
invested.

2. The amount of earnings were kept account of separately from the fund principal
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Independent Auditors' Report
on Agreed-Upon Procedures

Board Members

Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by Caddo Parish
School Board, solely to assist the users in evaluating management's assertion about the effectivencss
of Caddo Parish School Board's compliance with Act 743 of 1995 concerning the Caddo Educational
Excellence Fund (a nonexpendable trust fund of the Caddo Parish School Board) for the year ended
June 30, 1997, included in management's letter dated October 16, 1997 These agreed-upon
procedures engagement was performed in accordance with standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely for the
responsibility of the specified users of the report. Consequently, we make no representation
regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this
report has been requested or for any other purpose.

PROCEDURES

Puarsuant to LSA-R.S. 4:552

Randomly select three months collections and determine that the following two statements
are true:

i
1. An admission fee was collected of up to $3 for each passenger boarding or embarking
upon a river boat in the parish.

2. 12 1/2% of the admission fee revenue collected within the parish of Caddo was allocated
to the Caddo Educational Excellence Fund.

Mamber: Armerican Instilute of Cenlitied Public Accountants, Society of Louisiana Ceritied Public Accountants and
Amencan Institute ol Centified Public Accountants Dhvision 1or CPA Firms
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Sectiori 403(b) Tax-Sheltered Annuities

Certain governmental entitics offer Section 403(b) tax-sheltered annuities to their employees. The IRS has
developed an examination program for employers who offer these annuities. To date, examinations have uncoverced
many deficicncies in employers’ plans. These deficiencies bave included exceeding the various contnibution linuts,
noncompliance with distribution requirements, madequate salary reduction agreements, and failure to offer universal
availability of salary reduction programs (due to impermissible eligibility restrictions, mandatory contributions, and
participant exclusions). Sizable assessments against thesc employers have been common as a remedy to prevent
the programs from being declared taxable.

The IRS's Tax-Sheltered Annuty Voluntary Correction (TVC) program, which bezan in 1995, gives plan sponsors
of Section 403(b) annuity plans the opportunity to voluntarily correct any plan defects. The program was schedulcd
to conclude October 1996. However, the IRS has recently announced that the program has been extended il
Dcecember 31, 1998, Use of the TVC program may result in significantly reduced settlements with the IRS,
compared to assessments based on deficiencies discovered during audits performed by the IRS.

IRC Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans

Many state and local governments have established defeired compensation plans for their employees under the
provisions of IRC Section 457. The recently passed Small Business Job Protection Act of 1996 includes a provision
that will require these plans to hold all assets in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiarics.
This ncw requirement generally is effective for assets and income held by IRC Section 457 plans on or after
August 20, 1996. However, for plans in existence before August 20, 1996, a trust need not be established before
January 1, 1999, Before this new legislation, the amounts defcrred under an IRC Section 457 plan were, much 10
the dismay of the employees, legally the property of the governmental employer.

Again, the above itcms are matters we believe you should be aware of that could assist in the operations of the

School Board. The inclusion of items on pages 4-6 are informational and docs not indicate that the situation exists
at the School Board.

We hope the suggestions on the previous pages arc useful to you.
This report 1s intended solely for the use of the Board Members, management, Louisiana Department of Educatior,

U. S. Department of Education and other applicable federal agencies, and should not be used for any other purposc.
This restnction 1s not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of public record.

/Dl % /ﬁ*cﬂw__..- 4 aﬁf"*‘?’, LEr”
ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP

Monroe, Louisiana
October 16, 1997
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Year 2000 Compliance (Continued)

Software and even hardware vendors should be contacted immediately, if they have not already been contacted, to
determine the requirements of making the computer system Year 2000 compliant  Plans should be drawn up w.ih
the assistance of vendors and/or a consultant in Year 2000 comphance and closely monitored to assurc that the
School Board's system will not suffer a crisis. We would suggest that agreements or assurances should be attamd
from the softwarc/hardware vendors regarding their ability to make their systems Year 2000 compliant. It may be
that your system 1s Year 2000 compliant.

Retirees Returning to Work

The most severe penalty that we have noticed during our firm's career in auditing School Boards 1s the penalty
imposed by the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiaria (TRS) upon School Board for therr failure to report
annually the TRS retireces working at the School Board. The penalty is figured as though the employee 15 subjuat
{o paying retirement, resulting in the School Board paying the amount that would have been withheld for a regular
employee plus the employer's portion. The penalty works out to be approximately 25% of the retirecs’ wages and
is paid entircly by the School Board. The TRS will assess the penalty for however many years the annual reports
were not filed. You should ascertain that annual reports were filed.

Employees Being Treated as Contract Labor

Frequently at School Boards our firm audits we are noticing employees being paid amounts outside of the salan
schedule for extra duties, attending after-hours senunars and etc. Further, we somctimes see these amounts being
paid by a vendor check which bypass the amounts being subject to payroll tax and related regulations. Only 1 very
rare instances can an employee of the School Board be treated as an independent contractor. The instances are <o
rare, in fact, that we would suggest you check with the Internal Revenue Service or us before treating an employvee
as an independent contractor.

SEC Municipal Bond Disclosure Requirements

In responsc to concerns about the municipal securities market, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SE.C)
issucd a final rule entitled Municipal Securities Disclosure that became effective on July 3, 1995 (Section 17, Code
of Federal Regulations (CAR), Part 240, Relcase No. 34-34961). The final rule amends Rule 15¢2-12 under the
Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934 and attempts to deter fraud and manipulation 1a the municipal securitics market
by prohibiting the underwriting and subsequent recommendation of securities for which adequate information 1s not
available. The SEC issued Interpretive Release No. 33-7049 (Section 17, CAR, Parts 211,231, and 241) Statemeni
of the Commission Regarding Disclosure Obligations of Municipal Securities Issuers and Others. This interpretine
release 1s cited in the above-described final rule as a source of guidance on the disclosure obligations of issucrs of
municipal securities and is intended to assist municipal securities issuers, brokers, and dealers in meeting thair

obligations under the anti fraud provistons of the securities laws.

Further, the SEC's actions will lead to contractual requirements for issuers that may govern, among other things.
required financial information and audit requirements.
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The following items are matters we believe you should be aware of that could assist in the operations of the Schoo!
Board. The inclusion of items ar¢ informational and does not indicate that the situation exists at the School Board

OMB Circular A-133

All School Boards became subject to U. S, Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 and OMB
Circular A-133 Provisional Compliance Supplement for the first time for the fiscal year that recently ended. As purt
of these audit regulations which resultcd from the passage of the Single Audit Act Amendment of 1996, there 1s &
Dec Facto incentive to the School Board. More audit work will be required annually 1n the federal program arca for
a government that falls outside the low-risk auditee classification as defined by OMB. Items that prevents a Schowl
Board from being treated as a low-risk auditec 1s if the School Board had reportable conditions (internal control
wcaknesses) thal were considered material weaknesses and material compliance (violations of laws, regulations,
contract provisions, etc.) findings.

Another matter resulting from the change in audit regulations from OMB Circular A-128 (old audit regulations) to
OMB Circular A-133 1s the establishment of a $10,000 threshold for reporting questioned costs. Previously there
was no minimum requirements which resulted in some findings being reported that were fairly insignificant in the
scheme of the School Board's operation. The establishment of the $10,000 threshold will result in less findings
the single audit reports. That is the good news! The bad news is that the findings that are included in the report will
take or increased importance. There will be more interaction between the federal agency that provided the funding:
for the fedcral program and the School Board and the auditors. In fact the new Data Collection Form (transmittal
form that 1s submitted with all single audit reports) will include name, address, telephone and E-mail addresses for
both the School Board and the auditor. Included with each finding in the single audit report ts this same information
for the person assigned responsibility for the corrective action planned for each finding.

Finally, the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 mcluded a provision that the federal agency has access to the
auditor's work paper in order to resolve audit {indings. Previously, auditors were somewhat rcluctant to release audit
work papers that could be used by the federal agency to the detriment of the School Board for matters involying
questioned costs charged to a federal program. However, now there 1s no choice by the auditor. The federal agency
has access as per federal law.

Year 2000 Compliance

The turn of the century will be an exciting time for many, but could turn into a disaster unless plans have been made
concerning year 2000 compliance for many School Board's computer systems. The basic problem lics in the win
most computer software, both operating systems and application programs, calculate dates. Most programs usc tvwo
digits to represent the last two years of the 19XX dates, therefore the programs are conditioned to expect dates
between the year 1900 and 1999. If dates for the year 2000 are entered into these noncompliant programs, the
programs will assume the year 2000 to be the year 1900. Many arithmetic calculations, such as due dates and
interest calculations, will therefore be mcorrect. The impact of this problem, 1f not corrected, could be that the
entire computing system would cease to function, This would obviously cause tiemendous problems in importunt
areas such as accounts payable and payroll just to name a few.
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arnount of fuel used and miles per gallon cach time fucl is received. Exceplion reports reflecting discrepancics
will be provided. We belicve a new fuel management system will address the findings in the audit.

On November 19, 1997, the Caddo Parish School Board authorized staff to take bids for thc new {fuc
management system.

We have also included management's responses to our comments and recommendations. We have performed no
audit work to verify the content of the responses.

Our audit procedurcs are designed primarily to enable us to form an opinion on the financial statements and
therefore, may not reveal all weaknesses in policies and procedures that may exist.

FAMONIQUENWP S NDOCSYCCACADDO.PSEMSYTMANAGLTR WPD




Board Members

Caddo Parish School Board
Page 2

2.  School Activity Funds (Continued)

The Internal Audit staff may want to revisit their practice of auditing transactions for all ycars since the las!
audit. It may be more prudent to audit only the last year or two years of transactions at a school. 1f problerns
are encountercd the audit could be extended backward to cover transactions for all years since the last audit

The dollar amount of annual receipts or disbursements at each school should bz considered if a change 1s made
mn the current practice.

This suggested practice would permit the internal audit department to audit more schools annually.

Management's Response: Transactions are statistically sampled for each year audited. Changes 1n audits
have been implemented as a result of several incidents where theft of schoo] funds was found. We are now
making a surprise cash audit of every school every year, which we feel will help us detect problems soonct.
Since we are now at full staff with our auditors, we have been able to reduce the time between regular audits
After this year's audits are completed, no school should have more than three years between audits.

3. Transfers of Monies Between Funds

Comment: As a routine matter the School Board transfers monies between funds. In most cases the
bookkeeper for the receiving fund is different from the bookkeeper for the disbursing fund. A review of the
handling of the accounting in both funds should be made in order to assure that the accounting 1s compatiblc.
In other words, if one fund bookkeeper treats the transfer as an operating transfer, the other bookkeeper must
then treat the transactlion as a transfer. If one bookkeeper treats the transaction as a reimbursement, the other

bookkeeper must treat the transaction as a reimbursement. There were a few inconsistencics noted during the
audit.

Budgeting practice should mirror the accounting for these transfers.

Management's Response: The transfer of monies between funds will be monitored by the semor accountants
to insure that all transfers are properly resolved.

4. Fuel Monitoring

Comment: Examination of the internal audit report concerning fuel monitoring indicated there were sonic
difficulties reconciling fuel levels to fuel consumption. The report indicated that fuel requisition procedurcs
may not be followed in all cases, which could lead 1o such discrepancies. Quarterly audits of this situation
should be conducted until such time as a history of tolerable vartance 1s achicved.

Management's Response:  Environmental Protection Agency regulations require the Caddo school systain
to upgrade or replace its fuel storage tanks by December 1998, In connection therewith we are in the process
of evaluating various ways to meet our fueling needs.

All of the options we have reviewed to date include an automated fuel control system. We expect to implemerd
a system that will identify by vehicle and driver quantity of fuel pumped. Reports will reflect miles dniven.
arnount of fuel used and miles per gatlon each time fuel is received. Exception reports reflecting discrepancics
will be provided. We believe a ncw fuel management system will address the findings in the audit.

FAMONIQUEVWPSINDOQCSWCCWCADDO FSBU9TMANAGLTR WPD
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Board Members

Caddo Parnish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

In planning and performing our audit of the general-purpose financial statements of Caddo Parish School Board for
the year ended June 30, 1997, we considered the School Board's internal control structure to plan our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on
the internal control structure:.

However, during our audit, we noted certain matters mvolving the internal control structure and other operation:l
matters that are presented for your consideration. This letter does not affect our report dated October 16, 1997, on
the financtal statements of Caddo Parish School Board. We will review the status of these comments during out
next audit engagement. Qur comments and recommendations, all of which have been discussed with appropriastc
members of management, are intended to improve the internal control structure or result in other opcrating
cfficienicics. We will be pleased to discuss these conaments in further detail at your convenience, to perform any
additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementing the recommendations. Qur comments arc

summarized as follows:

1. Internal Audit Procedures Concerning Fixed Assets

Comment: An examination of internal audit reports concerning verification of the fixed asset listing mdicated
somc problems may exist with the listing. Seven ilems, or eighteen percent of the forty items sclected for
cxamination, werc not found. The audit reports seemed to indicate that the items had been scrapped but had
not been removed from the histing. This could possibly indicate that the listing does not accurately reflect the
fixed assets of the School Board.

Management's Response: The accounting department is in the process of initiating procedurcs to verify and
update fixed asset inventory records. This procedurce will involve each site or location updating its inventors
listings for additions, changes, delctions and retirecs. Listings will be returned to the accounting departmen!
for the purpose of updating inventory records.

2.  School Activity Funds

Comment: An exanmunation of a sample of school activity fund internal audit reports for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997 revealed two instances where school funds were unaccounted for, Audit conclusions seened
to ndicate that mternal controls at these schools could be improved, which may have contributed to the
problem. In addition, because of the large number of schools, yearly audits of each school 1s not practical
Accordingly, audits of some schools when performed may cover a time period of up to six to eight years. This
means that when some audits are performed, an enormous number of transactions have probably occurrcd
[r some cases, the personnel responsible for the bookkeeping will no longer be employed by the school. This
would increase the difficulty of the audit and could allow weak internal controls to go unchecked.

FAMONIQUEYWFS NDOC SYCCW ADDO . PSBYUSYAMANAGLTR. WED
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

PART ] - Summary of the Auditors’ Results

Financial Statement Audit

1.

1,

11

The type of audit report issued was unqualified.

There were no reportable conditions required to be disclosed by Government Auditing Standards 1ssucd
by the Comptroller General of the United States,

There were no instances of noncompliance considered material, as defined by the Government Auditing
Standards, to the financial statements.

Audit of Federal Awards

1V,

Vi

Vil

V1il.

1X.

There were no reportable conditions required to be disclosed by OMB Circular No. A-133.
The type of report the auditor issued on compliance of major federal awards was unqualified.

The audit disclosed no audit findings which the auditor is required to report under OMB Circular No.
A-133, Section .510(a).

The major federal awards are:

CFDA #84.010 Title I Grants to l.ocal Educational Agencies
CFDA #84.027 Special Education - Grants 10 States (Pari. B)

Cluster (as defined by OMB Circular No. A-133 Provisional Compliance Supplement)

CFDA #10.553 School Breakfast Program
CFDA #10.555 National School Lunch Program
CFDA #10.559 Summer Food Program for Children

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as defined in OMB Circula
No. A-133, Section .520(b) was $879,594.

The auditee does not qualify as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular No. A-133, Section .530.

10
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
June 30, 1997

FINDING:
Reference #: Finding #1 in the Schedule of Reportable Conditions

Title: Accounts Payable Reconciliation

Fiscal year finding initially occurred: 1995-1996

Comment: The School Board maintained an accounts payable control account in the general ledger for cach
fund. Accounts payable transactions were posted monthly into these accounts by the accounts payable
department personnel and the payroll department personnel. At year-end, the bookkeepers for each fund set
up other payables. Since the School Board began using the new accounting software package, 1t appeared there
were no reconciliation made agrecing the details of the outstanding payable with the accounts payable conts ol
account. The reason a reconciliation was necessary was to ensure that the transactions throughout the time
period were posted, they were posted correctly, and that the outstanding balances reflected on the books were
the correct balances. The potential existed for balances to be brought forward from previous periods cven
though the balances were paid. Balances that should have been set up at year-end may have been inadvertently
onmitted.

Corrective action taken: The accounting and accounts payable department have developed reconciliation
procedures for all accounts payable accounts leading to the correction of this finding. Separate accounts have
now been set up to handle transactions involving payroll, vendor payments and year-end accruals,

The payroll payables are now reconciled on a monthly basis by comparing the "Detail Transaction Report "
which reflects all transactions posted to an account number, with the computer accounting system balance,
which reflects ending balance by month and period activity. A trade vendor reconciliation shect has been
prepared and funds are reconciled to a report of unpaid invoices. The balance of this report 1s compared to the
trade vendor account for all funds. A spread sheet is prepared and submitted to each bookkeeper for the
purpose of recording all year-end accruals. This spread sheet is compared to the year-end balance in the
accrual account. It will be monitored during the year until all accruals have been properly accounted for. The
finding 15 now considered corrected.

Contact person responsible for corrective action:

Mr. Harry Monroe

Supervisor: Accounting and Accounts Payable
P. O. Box 32000

Shreveport, LA 71130-2000

Telephone: (318) 632-6345

Facsimile: (318) 632-6496
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

NOTE 4 - RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule agree with the amounts reported in the related federal
‘ financial reports except for changes made to reflect amounts tn accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

NOTE 5 - NONCASH PROGRAMS

The commodities received, which are noncash revenues, are valued using prices provided by the United States
Department of Agriculture.




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal awards
programs of the Caddo Parish School Board, Shreveport, Louisiana. The Caddo Parish School Board (the "Schoc!
Board") reporting entity is defined in note 1 to the School Board's general-purpose financial statements. Federal

awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards passed through other government agencics,
i1s included on the schedule.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the modified accrual basis
of accounting, which 1s described 1n note 1 to the School Board's general-purpose financial statements.

NOTE 3 - RELATIONSHIP TO GENERAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Federal awards expenditures are reported in the School Board's general-purposz financial statements as follows

Federal Sources

General Fund $ 1,524,620

Special Revenue Funds:

Title I 11,970,383
Title VI 257727
Special Education 2,335,843
Title II 251,464
Title X1X 146,348
Title IV - Drug-Frec 255,721
Family Support Act 677,219
Adult Education 198,276
Vocational Education 754,647
Child Nutrition Program 10,006,288
Goals 2000 179296
JTPA 54.161
JROTC Career Academy 264,565
Miscellaneous 443,235

Total $29.319,793




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ CFDA Pass-Through
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NAME Number iarantor No,
CASH FEDERAL AWARDS

: United States Department of Health and Human Services
. Passed Through the Louisiana Department of Education:
Child Care and Development Block Grant

(Starting Points Preschool) 93.575 N/A
Title XIX 13.714 N/A
Passed Through the Office of Family Support:
Family Support Act 13.781 CIFMS-507968

Total United States Department of
Health and Human Services

United States Department of Labor
Passed Through the City of Shreveport:
Job Training Parinership Act (JTPA) 17.250 E6007, E7007,
E6008, B6021,
PY-96-70-7-11

United States Department of Defense Direct Programs:

Department of The Army
JROTC 12.609 N/A
ROTC NONE
Flood Control Projects 12,106 N/A

Total United States Department of Defense

Other Cash Federal Awards
Payment in Licu of Taxes NONE

Total Cash Federal Awards
NONCASH FEDERAL AWARDS

United States Department of Agriculture
Passed Through Louisiana Department of Agriculture and Forestry:

Food Distribution {Commoditics) 10.550 N/A

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS

Expenditures

$ 118,522
146,318

847,838

1,112,708

s me

54,16 ]

264 5063
920,954
864

1,186,303

17190

29317.770

2,023

$29.319,793

(Concluded)



CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ CFDA Pass-Through
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NAME Number (Jrantor No.
CASH FEDERAL AWARDS

United States Department of Agriculture
Passed through Ender York, Inc. of Herdon, Virginia:

Food Distribution (Cash in Lieu of Commodities) 10.550 N/A
Passed through Louisiana Department of Education:

School Breakfast Program 10.553 N/A

National School Lunch Program 10.555 N/A

Summer Food Program for Children 10.559 N/A

Total United States Department of Agriculture

United States Department of Education
Passed Through Louisiana Department of Education:
Adult Education - State Grant Program 84.002 N/A
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010  95.047-9C/O To 96
96-043-9 C/O To 97
06-043-9, 97-1ASA-09

Special Education:

Grants to States (Part B) 84.027 97-FT-09
Preschool Grants 84.173 G7-PF-09
Vocational Education:

Basic Grants to States 84.046 286-97-00-25E
28-97.09-2-SP
28-97-A)-2-B

Tech-Prep Education 84.243 28-97-A)-3-PF

Innovative Education Program Strategies - Title VI 84.298 97-IASA-09-6
Title 11 (Eisenhower Professional Development) 84.281 O7-JASA-9
Title IV (Safe and Drug-Free Schools - State Grant) 84.186 97-IASA-09-4
Goals 2000

State and Local Education Systematic

Improvement Grants 84.276 N/A

Even Start - Migrant Education 84.214 97-IASA-9ES

Education for Homeless Children and Youth

(McKinney Homeless Assistance) 84.196A N/A
Passcd Through Louisiana State University

Urban Community Service (Project Achieve) 84.252A N/A
Passed Through Office of Education Support:

Very Important Ladies and Gentlemen NONE

Total United States Department of Education

Expenditurcs

$ 785.445

7,044 8] 3
1,814 595
359414

10,004,265

198,276
11,970,353

2,382,350
417276

600,043
154,604
257,707

251 464
255,71

179,296
117 415
67,036
87,353

4,087

16,943,063

(Continucd)




Board Members
Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. Our consideration of the interna
control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be matenal
weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the mtern
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicablc
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and s
operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund and account
group statements and schedules of Caddo Parish School Board, Shreveport, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated October 16, 1997, Our audlit was performed for the purpose
of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements and the combining and indtvidual fund anc
account group statements and schedules taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of feder «i
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and 1s not a requurcd
part of the general-purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund and account group statements
and schedules. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-
purpose f{inancial statements and the combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedulcs
and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the gencral-purpose financial statemenis
and the combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules taken as a whole.

This report is intended for the information of the Board, management and federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

/7)(,&45 /ér\ubr\ 751 &%u;, A’(‘/ﬂ

ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP

Monroe, Louisiana
October 16, 1997
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board Members
Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Loutsiana

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Caddo Parish School Board with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U, S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that arc
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1997, Caddo Parish School Board's
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of Caddo Parish School Board's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Caddo Parish School Board's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance 1n accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations,
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurarice
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a dircet
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about Caddo Panish School Board's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We beheve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion
Our audit does not provide a legal determination on Caddo Parish School Board's compliance with those
requircments.

In our opinion, Caddo Parish School Board complied, in all material respects, with the requirements refericd
to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1997

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Caddo Parish School Board 1s responsible for establishing and maintaining effcctive
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Caddo Parish School Board's internal control o e
compliance with requircments that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to

Member: American Institute of Certified Public Accountarits, Society of Louisiana Certitied 1Public Accountants and
American Institute ot Centified Public Accountants Division for CPA Firms




Board Members

Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

This report is intended for the information of the Board, management and fcderal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution 1s not limited.

/45&*; W %@7% CLK

ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP
Monroe, Loulsiana
October 16, 1997
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL. OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board Members

Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund and account group
statcments and schedules of Caddo Parish Schoo! Board, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1997, and have 1ssucd
our report thereon dated October 16, 1997. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 1ssucd by
the Comptroller General of the United States.

Comphance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Caddo Parish School Board's financial statements arc free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provistens of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on mmpllance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tesis disclosed no mstances of

noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Intcrnal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Caddo Parish School Board's internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial! reporting. Our consideration of the
internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matiers in the internal control o cr
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness 1s a condition in which the design o
operation of one or more of the internal control components docs not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial stalecments being audited may occur and
not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions
We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be
malterial weaknesses. However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that
we have reported to management of Caddo Parish School Board in a separate letter dated October 16, 1997,

Member: American institute of Centilied Public Accountants, Society of Louisiana Certiied Public Accountants and
American Institute of Certilied Public Accountants Division for CPA Firms




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Compliance with Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Schedule of Surety/Honesty Ronds
June 30, 1897

Coverage

—_— - T T T,

Superintendent’'s Bond $
Public Employees Blanket Bond - All Employees

Notary Bond - Joy Sneed

116

Table 16

100,000
200,000
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Miscellaneous Statistical Data
June 30, 1997

Constructed Capacity/Sq.Fi. Acreage

Elementary Schools;

Central 1917 51,136 3.22
Cherokees Park 1966 414,142 8.50
Claiborne Fundamental Magnet 1923 42,742 5.00
Creswell 1920 43,560 4.00
tden Gardens Fundamental Mag. 1967 44,496 6.47
Eighty-First Street ECE 1954 35,452 12.60
Fairfield 1924 32,600 9.00
Forest Hill 1964 43,700 12.40
George P. Hendrix 1916 30,540 2.54
Hillsdale 1960 30,000 12.00
Hosston 1931 29,623 10.02
Ingersoll 1956 57,100 11.69
Judson Fundamental Magnet 1954 27,784 12.00
|.akeshore 1949 94,561 18.00
l.aurel Street ECE 1905 36,136 3.00
Mooretown ECE 1954 54,000 10.39
Mooringsport 1911 43,868 4.00
North Highlands 1957 30,902 10.00
Northside 1955 38,193 12.00
Qak Park 1958 40,000 10.21
Pine Grove 1963 37,432 10.00
Pine Valley 1956 30,802 13.15
(Queensborough 1924 67,082 5.37
Riverside 1957 35,223 9.44
Rodessa 1938 33,433 10.45
Shreve Island 1955 40,100 10.45
Newton Smith 1960 32,295 11.72
South Highlands Magnet 1922 43,528 5.40
Southern Hills 1959 41,788 10.00
A.C. Steere 1929 22,692 12.69
E-. B. Williams Stoner Hill Lab 1954 34 587 14.44
summerlield 1967 42 850 15.46
Summer Grove 1954 27,784 12.31
Sunset Acres 1954 29.400 10.73
Jack P. Timmons 1956 33,795 10.08
University 1969 42,850 16.34
Werner Park 1942 45,163 8.30
wWest Shreveport 1926 418,416 5.00
Westwood 1960 25,295 8.25

1,799,540 431.82

Other Instruction Sites:
Alexander Special Education 1912 30,000 3.73
Caddo Career Centler 1956 83,990 18.15

Caddo School for

Exceptional Children 1956 13,450 2.10
(ak Terrace Special Education 1959 66,200 18.00
Sschool Nurse/Book Processing 1975 0,698 3.60
Special Education Center 1082 14,280 6.00
SR X[ T siss
Total Overall Instruction Sites 5,564,614 - 2,142.98

115 | {Concluded)




Table 15
CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Shreveport, Louisiana

Miscellaneous Statistical Data
June 30, 1897

Form of Government : Parish School Board

Geographic Area: 891 Square Miles
Instruction Sites: Constructed Capacity/Sq.Ft. Acreage
High Schools:
C. E. Byrd 1826 233,624 20.56
Caddo Magnet 1964 117,245 26.50
Caplain Shieve 1967 177,826 58.00
Carver 1958 73,125 641.84
Fair Park 1928 151,918 23.00
Green Oaks 1971 157,000 54.23
Hamilion Terrace Adult
L earning Center 1925 71,000 80.00
Huntington 1973 227,301 61.48
North Caddo 1954 85,464 40.00
Northwood 1967 147,486 63.20
Southwood 1970 173,753 G0.00
Booker T. Washington 1950 145,366 32.93
Woodlawn 1960 176,858 ~ 48.82
- 1,937,966 1,210.56
Middle Schools:
Bethune 1961 105,300 20
Donnie Bickham 1989 160,457 32.38
Broadmoor Middle Lab 1949 72,736 16.28
Caddo Middie Magnet 1965 106,880 20
J. 5. Clark 1958 104,080 30.54
Hollywood 1955 66,103 10
Linear 1961 79,263 25
L.inwood 1949 85,812 17.62
Midway 1931 63,028 12
Ridgewood 1965 83,415 19.98
Youree Drive 1959 75,350 26.25
1,002,524 - 230.05
Elementary/Middle Schools:
tHerndon 1956 75,969 80.00
Keithville 1989 160,000 32.67
Oill City 1923 33,071 4.72
Turner 1984 160,000 15.00
Vivian 1923 83,441 9.00
Walnut Hill 1956 88,485 77.58
600,966 - 218.97
lementary Schools:
Arthur Circle 1955 30,802 12.77
Atkins 1935 40,832 13.07
Barret 1916 38,300 4.00
Blanchard 1948 62,466 10.00
Caddo Heights 1949 62,190 15.36

i14
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Table 14

Details of Coverage Coverage

_ and Co-Insurance o limits _____Premium
All property, employees & vehicles
$200,000 deductible $ 1,000,000 $ 453,611
Umbrella liability 2,000,000 49,643
Boilers and electric motors
$10,000 deductible 5,000,000 21,066
James E. Foster
No deductible 100,000 2,663
Joy Sneed
No deductible 5,000 110
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Schedule of Insurance in Force (1)
June 30, 1997

Type of Coverage Policy Period
~NameofCompany _Policy Number From To

Property damage, general liability & automobile liability

Coregis 651-0063195 9/1/96 Qf1/9
Commercial Umbrella Policy 503-071926-3 9/1/96 9/1/97

Coregis
Propery loss and property darmage liability

Hantford Steam Boiler HN-095603820 711/96 7/1/97
Superintendent's bond

Actna Casualty & Surety Co. 485100175853 7/1/93 711/97
Notary Bond

Aetna Casualty & Surety Co. 715100666947BCA 10/1/90 10/1/00

Notes:

(1) Insurance files maintained by Director of Risk Management of the Caddo Parish School Board.
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Table 13
CADDO PARISH SCHQOL BOARD

shrevepor, L.ouisiana

Attendance Data
Fiscal years ended June 30, 1988 through June 30, 1997

Average Daily Altendance

111

Fiscal Number of Average Daily Percent of Percent of
Year ~ Graduates =~ Membership  Amount ___Change _ Membership
1988 2,565 51,909 49,197 0.79% 894.78%
1989 2,550 51,534 48,787 -(0.83% 94.67%
1980 2,382 50,480 47,747 -2.13% 94.59%
1991 2,292 50,006 47,086 -1.38% 94.16%
1992 2,075 50,075 47,135 0.10% 94.13%
1993 2,240 48,672 44,193 -0.214% 90.98%
1994 2,204 48,589 45,079 2.00% 92.78%
1995 2,114 48,062 44,614 -1.03% 92.83%
1996 2,252 49,000 415,443 1.86% 92.74%
1997 2,294 48,742 15,486 0.09% 93.32%




Tabile i2
CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Shreveport, Louisiana

FPrincipal Taxpayers
June 30, 1897

Percentag:
of Total

Assessed Assessod

_Neme . Industty _..value  Valuation
Southwestern Electric Power Company Public: Utility o 45,770,100 4.63".
Bell South Public Utility 34,527,920 3.49..
Atlas Processing Company Refinery 21,335,160 2.16° .,
General Motors Manufacturing - Vehicles 17,355,070 1.76°,
Lucent Technologies Manufacturing 16,733,050 1.69°.
Comrnercial National Bank Financial Institution 12,223,590 1.24 ..
NorAm Energy Corporation Public Ultilitiy 10,674,570 1.07" ..
Premier Bank Financial institution 8,981,030 0.97
Hibernia Bank Financial Institution 8,792,030 0.89.
Universal Oll Products Refinery __ 8,056,890 0.62°
Total for ten principal taxpayers $ 184,349,410 18.66"
Total for remaining taxpayers 803,748,940 81.34"
Total for all taxpayers __ $_988098350 - 100.00

Notes:

Caddo Farish Tax Assessor
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Commercial Construclion (2)

"~ Number of

UrllitS_ )
161

143

42
641
78

{2

3,616,075
21,651,566
19,794,437
26,844,915
18,329,362
14,125,672
24,776,625
28,406,873
25,800,000

42,500,000

Table 11

Residential Construction (2)

Value

Number of

Units  valle _ BankDeposis (@)
163 15,720,401 3,035,000
121 10,637,894 2,685,618
60 0,427,464 2,523,957
69 9,875,490 2,485,842
96 12,203,040 2,600,611
272 21,873,965 2,337,511
178 23,803,536 2,287,927
233 33,893,896 2,262,514
248 34,000,000 2,332,600
276 37,700,000 N/A
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1987

1988

1989

1990

1991

1992

1993

1994

1995

1996

Notes:

Yg:_ar

$

Qﬂmmercizal

CADDO PARISH SCHQOL BOARD
Shrevepont, Louisiana

Property Value, Construction, and Bank Deposits

m e m m i Rt e e e E o ————

Last Ten Calendar Years

65,046,619,152
5,609,552,160
5,607,489,354
5,697,295,350
5,578,561,600
5,554,558,100
5,688,477,600
5,665,316,900
3,463,827,400

3,624,480,008

(1) Caddo Parish Tax Assessor
(2) Shreveport Chamber of Commerce
(3) Northeast Louisiana University Center for Business & Economic Research

$

Hesid_g_n!jgll

—_———

~_Property Value (1)

2,351,5640,781
2,181,492,607
2,179,995,613
2,093,822,240
2,075,900,600
2,148,278,066
2,285,386,000
2,505,636,061
3,988,799,300

4.112,746,600

108
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Exemptions

—— — o — . e e ey ——_——

261,697,620
257,077,600
261,131,730
259,455,860
258,638,700
253,789,640
255,388,410
256,300,510
259,589,360

266,816,290

$

T

Total

6,136,662,313
7,533,967,067
7,626,353,237
7,631,661,730
7,395,823,500
7,448,046,526
7,729,475,190
7,914,652,451
7,183,037,340

7,470,409,618




CADDO PARISH SCHQUOL. BOARD
Shrevepont, Louisiana

Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

Table 10

Average

Median School Daily Unemployment
Year Lopulation (1) - Age(2) _ Enrollment ~ Membership  Rate (3)
1987 2/3,433 31.5 51,416 51,909 11.0%
1988 271,239 31.4 90,774 51,634 10.7%
1989 269,258 30.3 49,869 50,480 8.3%
1920 248,253 32.7 494,615 50,006 6.7%
1991 249,528 32.7 50,028 50,075 1.2%
1992 247,035 32.7 48,488 48,571 7.1%
1993 246,597 35.2 47,988 48,589 7.1%
1994 246,435 33.3 48,658 48,062 7.9%
1995 246,706 33.3 49,915 43,000 7.1%
1996 246,353 34.2 49,603 48,742 6.0%

Notes:

(1) Research Division, Louisiana Tech University except 1991 which is from the U.S. Census.
(2) Shreveport Chamber of Commerce.
(3) Northeast Louisiana University Center for Business & Fconomic Reserch
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Fiscal
Year

1687-88
1988-89
1980-90
1980-91
19091-92
1892-93
1993-94
1984-95
1995-96
1996-97

Notes:

$

__Principal

CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditure(s) for
General Bonded Debt to Total General Expenditures

Fiscal Years ended June 30, 1988 through June 30, 1997

1,405,000
1,420,000
1,775,000
1,220,000
1,450,000
1,480,000
1,980,000
2,155,000
2,340,000

2,525,000

$

Interest and
Fiscal Charges

———— o — ——— L s

3,599,396
3,457,268
2,640,310
2,944,905
2,809,220
2,646,140
1,677,986
1,805,560
1,603,775

1,471,160

(1} Includes all governmental fund types expenditures.

106

$

Se[x{j ce

——— _——_—

Total
Debt
2,004,396
4,677,268
4,415,310
4,164,905
4,259,220
4,126,140
3,657,996
3,960,560
3,943,775

3,996,160

$

Total General

_ ___f_:"__:_:-:pengi_tures (1)

164,548,025
185,696,216
203,370,253
206,009,158
212,034,763
213,079,746
219,562,127
232,441,639
239,387,901

201,761,317

Table

Ratio of Dty
service to Gone 1l

Expenditure:

3.04%

Z2.63%

217%

2.02%

2.01%

1 .94 [:"Er

1.67%

1.70%

1.65%

1.59%




Tablec 8
CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
- Shrevepott, Louisiana
Computation of Legal Debt Margin
June 30, 1997
Asscssed value (1) $ 088,098,260
Debl limit thiny-five (35%) of assessed value’ 345,834 4275
Amount of debt applicable to debt limit:
Total general bonded debt % 26,790,000
L ess: Assets in debt service funds B - 1,098,579
Total amount of debt applicable to debt limit 25,691 4
l.egal debt margin R 320,143 O

* This percentage is in accordance with Act 103 of 1880 Regular Session of the Louisiana Legislature R.5.39:562(c).

Notes:

(1) Caddo Parish Tax Assessor
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Table 7
CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Computation of Direct, Overlapping, and Underlying General Bonded Debt
June 30, 1997

Percentage
Net Debt Applicable to School Board’s
Name of Governmental Unit —~~_ Oulstanding __ThisUnit —_ Share of Debt (2) -
Caddo Parish School Board (3) $ 25,691,421 100%  $ 25,691,421
Caddo Parish Commission (3) 19,125,312 100% 19,125,312
Cily of Shrevepon (3) 143,727,561 99% 142,200,285
Total $ 188,544,294 $ 187,107,018

—_— m ==

Notes:

(1) Various taxing districts exist within Caddo Parish that involve a small percentage of Parish taxpayers. These districts’
debt is not included.

(2) This represents the debt of all the constituents who reside within Caddo Parish.

(3) Financial information extracted from Annua! Financial Report of respective government .
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Table 6

Ratio of Net

Bonded Debt Net Bonded

To Assessed Debt Per

vale  Ceptta
3.68% $ 127
3.81% 123
3.92% 128
3.88% 135
3.73% 130
3.86% 139
3.46% 129
3.17% 121
2.95% 113
2.60% 104
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt

to Assessed Value and Net General Obligation Bonded Debt per Carita

Fiscal years ended June 30, 1988 through June 30, 1897

Less Debt
FFiscal Caddo Parish Assessed (Gross Service Net Bonded

Year  Population (1) value (2)  Bonded Debt Funds _ . Debt

1087-88 273,433 $ 946,864,010 $ 37,300,000 $ 2,452,539 $ 34,847,461
1988-89 271,239 879,030,510 35,880,000 2,402,783 33,477,217
1989-90 269,258 878,594,670 37,170,000 2,683,530 34,481,470
1990-91 248,253 861,697,580 35,950,000 2,415,594 33,533,406
1991-92 249,528 871,602,430 34,500,000 2,025,418 32,474,582
1992-93 247,035 885,697,400 35,790,000 1,575,026 34,214,974
1993-94 246,597 920,598,630 33,810,000 1,974,480 31,835,620
1984-95 246,435 942,377,110 31,655,000 1,770,280 29,884,710
1995-86 246,706 948,851,270 29,315,000 1,340,938 27,974,062
1996-97 246,363 988,098,350 26,790,000 1,098,579 25,691,421

Noles:

(1) Amounts provided by the Research Division of Louisiana Tech University, Ruston, Louis'ana except 1990
which was obtained from the 1.5, Census.

(2) Assessed value is the total assessed valuation of all property located in Caddo Parish as approved by Caddo

Parish Tax Assessor. Revaluations are reflected in years 1988, 1992 and 1996.
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Table 5

Jaxlevies (2)

101

Parishwide City of
_ Commission ~  Schools _  Sheriff  ~ Shrevepori(3) =~ Total
20,421,374 31,805,378 5,220,960 29,957,429 87,405,141
20,814,698 33,908,873 5,180,868 30,083,323 89,987,762
24,060,163 33,664,079 5,143,466 30,551,593 93,419,301
23,461,935 32,081,416 5,016,674 31,470,400 92,030,422
25,630,128 32,465,020 6,917,974 33,672,187 88,585,309
26,615,156 35,019,849 7,449,460 35,396,842 104,481,507
27,466,995 36,630,049 0,828,537 36,402,501 110,328,082
25,711,970 37,720,491 10,249,984 37,825,061 111,607,506
26,786,404 37,640,523 10,303,214 39,316,657 114,046,798
27,508,928 38,451,509 10,775,943 40,048,785 116,785,165




| ‘r’e_ar |

1987

1988

1989

1990

1991

1992

1993

1994

1995

1996

Notes:
(1) Includes parishwide overlapping levies and levy of the largest municipality which overlaps approximately

Cﬂrnmission_ )

29.19

32.79

38.29

38.29

42.46

41.93

42,53

38.72

38.22

39.95

CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shrevepon, Louisiana

Parishwide
Schools

54.52

63.27

53.17

56.13

55.68

54.98

54.58

53.31

_“Sheﬁﬂ

7.62

8.33

8.33

8.33

11.33

11.94

14.94

14.94

14.94

14.94

Tax Rates per $1,000 of Assessed Value (2)

Property Tax Rates and Tax | evies - All Direct and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Calendar Years

City of
_Shreveport (3)

41.50

44.01

44 .01

48.51

48.51

51.34

51.34

51.34

51.34

51.63

Total

124,73

139.65

145.15

148.40

155.47

161.34

164.49

159.98

159.08

159.83

75.5% of the total parish assessment. There are other small municipalities and taxing disticts currently

levying ad valorem taxes within the parish.

(2) Caddo Parish Tax Assessor.

100

(3) Rates for taxpayers within the City of Shreveport and the 1own of Vivian.




Table 4

99

Exemptions ~~ Total Ratto of Assessed
Real Assessed Estimated Value to Estimated
Property __ Value  ActualValie Actual Value
261,697,620 $ 685,166,390 $ 8,107,5638,480 8.5%
257,077,600 621,952,910 7,505,407 467 8.3%
261,131,730 617,462,940 7,484,620,147 8.2%
259,455,860 602,241,720 6,757,492,000 8.9%
258,638,700 612,963,730 6,797,690,350 9.0%
253,789,640 631,907,770 6,888,410,900 9.2%
255,388,410 665,210,220 7,135,332,740 2.3%
256,300,510 686,076,600 8,369,991,047 8.2%
259,589,360 689,261,910 7,442,626,700 9.3%
266,816,990 721,281,360 7,737,226,608 9.3%




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property (1)
lLast Ten Calendar Years

Real Property Personal Property

 Assessed Estimated “Assessed Estimated
 Year Value Actual Value ___Vvale __ __ ActualVaue
1987 $ 746,132,380 $ 6,769,327,613 $ 200,731,630 $ 1,338,210,867
1988 696,963,390 6,291,626,66/7 182,067,120 1,213,780,800
1989 699,799,230 0,292,650,547 178,795,440 1,191,969,600
1980 684,678,130 5,5677,369,333 177,019,450 1,180,129,667
1991 664,564,545 5,417,437,783 207,037,885 1,380,252,567
1992 670,396,700 5,453,072,833 215,300,710 1,435,338,067
1993 686,855,780 5,677,047,073 233,742,850 1,558,285,667
1994 679,212,460 6,615,560,047 263,164,650 1,754,431,000
1905 £04,228,840 5,745,143,833 254,622,430 1,697,482,867
1996 714,710,230 5,914,639,142 273,388,120 1,822,587,466
Note:

Assessed value are established by the Caddo Parish Tax Assessor on January 1st of each year at approximately
10-25% of actual market value, depending upon the property classification. A revaluation of all property is required
to be completed no less than every four years. The last revalualion was completed for the tax roll of 1996.

(1} Caddo Parish Tax Assessor




Table 3

Total Taxes, Total Collections

Interest, and As a Percent of

Penally Collected .~ _ Current Tax Levy

3 30,528,070 35.98%
32,086,204 94.62%
32,826,011 97.51%
31,489,802 08.16%
32,003,733 98.86%
34,992,940 99.92%
35,666,540 97.37%
36,676,304 97.23%
35,960,712 05.54%
38,929,862 101.24%
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Fiscal Years ended June 30, 1988 through June 30, 1997

(1) Caddo Parish Tax Assessor

06

Total School ___Delinquent Taxes Collected
Fiscal Board fax Current Tax Percent of Tax Interest and
~ Year  Assessment Collections  LevyCollected =~ Taxes _Penalty
1987-86 $ 31,805,378 20,749,678 93.54% $ 593411 $ 184,981
1988-89 33,008,873 31,519,198 02.95% 337,009 229,997
1989-80 33,664,079 31,757,850 94.34% 756,866 311,295
1890-91 32,081,416 30,672,625 95.61% 535,510 281,667
1991-92 32,465,020 30,971,901 95.40% 783,311 338,431
1992-93 35,019,949 33,784,408 06.47% 863,788 344 743
1993-94 36,630,049 34,776,000 94.94% 732,425 158,115
1084-95 37,720,491 35,645,788 94.50% 875,581 154,935
1995-96 37,640,523 35,269,842 93.70% 530,401 160,469
1996-97 38,451,509 37,353,822 97.15% 1,397,855 178,185
Notes:




$

1992 _
32 412,840
345,077,000
2.063 421
2,766,604
87,234
362,415

73,140,230

105,542 A11
2,641,122
3,004,847

13,498,125

370,686

114,686,505

...21,785,140

$ 209,611,935 § 217,097,135

oooAees o 1994 1995
54,992,940 $ 35666540 $ 36,522,449
56,618,089 38,540,607 40,662,972
2,006,562 1,397,450 1,953,308
2,663,757 2,624,549 3,237,809

02,486 105,383 108,547
282,716 174,384 182,851
402,155 399984 453,775
77,058,705 __ 78908897  __ 83.1°eh/11
109,837,566 110,088,516 113,226,930
2,601,014 2,553,731 2,147,076
2,793,106 2,698,461 2,432,434
1,878,481 1,953,290 5,891,789
117,110,167 __ 116,894,003 123,698,228
_22928,263  26360,735 ___ 26,643,830

—_—— e e— —, e = = a1 = = -

Table 2

1996 Yooy
36,854 624 $ 39,270,971
42 744 4G7 42 396,962
2,603,076 2,380,121
2.450,474 2,363,957
232,594 282.877
037 465 1,306,183
338,575 435,805
186,241,275 88,436,876
116,820,211 122,551,245
2,117,706 2.377,754
2,301,600 2,138,546
1,081,476 2,202,064
123,221,893 129,359,609
27,964,606 29,319,793




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

General Revenues By Source - All Government Fund Types
Fiscal years ended June 30, 1988 through June 30, 1997

1988 1989(1) 1990 1991
l_.ocal sources:
Ad valorem taxes ¢ 30,528,070 $ 32,086,204 $ 32,826,011 $ 31,489,802
Sales taxes 30,864,262 31,385,866 32,100,524 33,516,156
investment earnings 2,797 2006 4,416,066 3,878,205 2,927,844
Food sales - 3,031,777 2,961,869 2,879,308
Rent and royalties 99,216 73,829 61,912 104,505
Other 712,028 106,714 222,651 114,128
Tuition 406,757 _ 373061 357,044 _ 327950
Tolal revenucs from local sources 64,767,539 71,4736517 72,408,216 . 71,369,64¢
State sources:
Equalization 73,817,331 85,912,962 98,018,311 99,878,130
Revenue sharing 3,170,850 3,190,019 3,047 857 2.490,164
Professional improvement program 3,842,028 3,564 827 3,413,941 3,212,641
Other 2,046,281 __ 2810379 2649888 4310677
Total from state sources 82876490 95478187 107,120997 109,891,861
Revenues from federal sources 7,741,485 16,159,580 20,088217 _ 19,966,17(

Notes:

(1) Child Nutrition Program operations are included in Special Revenue Funds beginning in 1989.
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Table 1
1992 | 1993 B 1984 1995 (2y 1996 1997
$ 128,846,246 $ 128,181,369 $ 131,995,005 % - > - 3 -
6,340,174 7,025,704 7,939,057 - - -
20,523,135 20,682,235 21,694,204 - - -
. . - 152,961,837 157,723,662 165,679,871
- - - 3,034,528 3,167,043 3,362,760
- - - 12,732,202 13,014,421 13,635,654
- . - 2,177,442 2,088,666 2,313,755
18,033,265 16,438,803 19,262,686 20,057,853 21,293,871 2221220
10,549,288 10,257,711 10,203,354 11,351,140 11,832,551 11,628,103
- - - 2,458 376 2,387,158 2,584,174
- - - 448,147 501,182 516,604
15,370,200 15,663,191 15,788,136 16,839,168 17,166,085 17,242 42
475,349 580,771 740,822 - - -
7,352,986 7,415,610 8,045,001 5,981,516 6,243,739 8,490,168
1,585,137 1,498,253 1,999,634 2,176,118 2,364,685 2525007
2,958,983 2,774,910 1,804,138 1,932,767 1,604,838 1477,16
- 561,189 - -
$ 212,034,763 $ 213,079,746 $ 219,562,127 § 232,151,004 _$ 239,387,901 § 25176131




CADDOQO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

General Expenditures By Function - All Governmental Fund Types
Fiscal Years ended June 30, 1988 through June 30, 1997

Current expenditures:

Instruction services

Instruction related services
General and school administration
Instruction

General administration

School administration
Business services

Plant services

Student transporlation services
Central services

Community services

Food service

Ancillary services

Capital outlay:

Debt sarvice:

Principal retirement
Interest and bank charges
Advance refunding escrow on bond

Total expenditures

Notes:

$

($ 164548025 %

1988 1989 (1)
07,729,806 $ 106,881,821
4,793,835 5,057,494
15,419,412 16,481 485
14,588,540 15,472 591
8,785,000 8,791,223
- 13,661,297
350,781 412,686
17,055,755 12,533,136
1,998,597 1,937,447
3,826,209 4 367,036

185,506,216

1990

122,067,251

6,675,724
18,711,070

17,066,170
0,679,249

14,250,559
563,113
4,368,450

2,152,287
2,836,374

_ 203,370,203

(1) Child Nutrition Program operations are included in Special Kevenue Funds beginnirg in 1989.

(2) In 1995 the School Board revised the functions presented in its financial statements.

92

$

1991

123,140,581

6,773,259
19,387,245

17,774,073
9.795H 918

14,866,734
4765612
9,129,419

1,566,661
3,089,636

$ o 20_6 009,158




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shrevepott, L.ouisiana

Exhibit 25
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION PAID BOARD MEMBERS
For the Year Ended June 30, 1897
MIKE POWELL, PRESIDENT $ 10,800
JERRY TIM BROOKS, FIRST VICE-PRESIDENT 10,200
RON ADAMS, SECOND VICE-PRESIDENT 10,200
JUDY D. BOYKIN 9,600
WILLIE D. BURTON 9,600
MILES HRITCHCOCK 9,600
MARK MILAM 9,600
ALVIN MIMS 9,600
MILDRED B. PUGH 9,600
MICHAEL J. THIBODEAUX 9,600
JOHNNY VANCE, JR. 9,600
SYBIL WALKER 9,600
TOTAL $ 117,600
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Shreveport, Louisiana
Exhibit 24

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997

Debt Service

Fund
July 1, 1996 ___Additions Payments = _ Operations June 30, 1997
Amount available in Debt Service Fund  $ 1,340,938 § 0% 0% (242,359) $ 1048578
Amount to be provided for retirement
of long-term debt 27,227,467 0 2,525,000 242,359 27,144 7248
Amount 1o be provided for
compensated absences 13,317,935 294 650 0 0 13 612 585
Amount to be provided for claims
and judgments 594,343 0 _ 25,978 Q L8415
$ 42480683 $_____204650%___ 2560928% 0 § 42420027
Long-term obligations payable:
Bonds payable $ 29,315,000 $ 0% 2525000 % 0 $ 26,790,000
Claims and judgments payable 594,343 0 25,928 0 568,415
Compensated absences payable 13,317,935 294,650 0 0 13612585

$ 432272786 % 2948508 2,550,928 $ 0 $ _40971,000

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT,
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Loutsiana

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP

The General Long-Term Debt Account Group represents a summary of the general long-term obligations of the
Board.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN GENERAL. FIXED ASSETS -
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

Exhibit 23
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997
Functior and Activity July 1, 1996 Additions  Retirements  June 30, 1997
Instruction:

High schools $ 62,298,681 % 1,676,855 % 0% 63,975 534
Middle schools 30,111,029 977,521 5,486 31,083 064
Elementary/Middle schools 25,161,745 1,115,781 0 28,277 526
Elementary schools 40,506,843 3,006,276 44,458 43,466 651
158,078,298 6,776,433 49,954 164 804,777
General and schoo! administration 7,787,335 818,022 688 B8 GOH 654
Plant and maintenance 7,198,859 601 460 0 7,800 419
Food Service Equipment 5,770,701 14,320 0 5,785 021
Transporiation 16,448,202 002,884 0 17,351 185
Total $ . 105,283 495% 9114219% 506423 204 347072

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOCOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS -
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
Exhibit 22
June 30, 1997

Buildings and Furniture and Transportation

Function and Activity Total l.and improvements _ Equipment  Equipment
Instruction:
High schools $ 63,975,536 1,448 280 % 57,912,062 } 4615175 $ 0
Middle schools 31,083,064 849,608 26,855,544 3,377,912 0
Elementary/Middie schools 26,277,526 774,501 22,812,892 2,680,033 0
Elementary schools 43.468,651 1,069,848 28,843 322 13,655,481 0
164,804,777 4,142 256 136,423,920 24,238,601 0
General and school adminisiration 8,605,669 66,503 7.564,768 049,784 24 554
Plant and maintenance 7,800,418 959 377 2,580,247 4 182,559 68,2 16
Food Service Equipment 5,785,021 0 0 5,785,021 C
Transportation 17,351,186 L 0 0 16,295 17,334 641
Total general fixed assets $_ _204347072%_ 51681369 __146568965% _ 35182260%___ 17427711

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS -
BY SOURCE
June 30, 1997

Exhibit 21
General FFixed Assets
Land $ 5,168,138
Buildings and improvements 146,568,905
Furniture and equipment 35,182,260
Transportation equipment 17,427,711
Total general fixed assets $ 204347072
Investment in general fixed assets by source:
Capital project funds $ 167,010,802
General fund 32,448,187
Child nutrition fund 4,555 117
Federal funds 7.195 644
Donations 1,244 045
State funds 1,893 267
Total investment in general fixed assets $ 204,347 072

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.

83




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Shreveport, L.ouisiana

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

The General Fixed Asset Account Group records the fixed assets of the School Board which are used i
governmenial fund-lypc operations.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

SCHOOL ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
Schedule of Changes in Deposits Due Others

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Exhibit 20

Balance, Balance,

SCHOOL Beginning Additions __ Deductions Ending

Mooretown ECE 11,072 15,115 14,037 12,150
Meoringsport Elementary 8,770 44,764 38,697 14,846
North Caddo High 23,698 172,871 192.574 3.8995
North Highlands Elementary 5,77 42,515 41,213 7.081
Northside Elementary 6,161 24,085 20,920 93726
Northwood High 32,479 314,448 308,229 38.648
Oak Park Elementary 3,852 33,398 31,122 6,228
Oak Terrace Special bd. 2,422 11,609 10,204 3827
Oil City Elem/Middle 11,885 26,621 27,985 10,521
Pine Grove Elementary 10,589 18,194 18,502 10,281
Queensborough Elementary 7,650 36,871 38,032 6,489
Ridgewood Middle 17,622 130,062 128,892 16,792
Riverside Elementary 9,628 79,034 78,995 G HET7
JROTC O 11,112 7,490 3622
Shreve lsland Elementary 3,721 47,065 41,136 9,650
Newton Smith Efementary 2,272 19,947 20,067 2152
South Highlands Elementary 28,761 234,596 224,108 39,249
Southern Hills Elementary 23,450 46,522 48 106 21,776
Southwood High 112,410 633,188 593,414 1£2.164
A.C. Steere Elementary 18,153 37,896 34,862 21,187
E. B. Williams Stoner Hill Elem. 5,382 50,309 46,382 9 409
Summerfield Elementary 32,393 38,059 42,4090 28 943
Summer Grove Elementary 12,732 45,965 45,589 13 108
Sunset Acres Elementary 15,107 31.676 30,973 15610
Timmons Elementary 9,300 22,773 20,487 11.586
Turner Elem/Middle 250,288 519,683 569,365 2000 516
University Elementary 7,997 128,398 112,573 23822
Vivian Elem/Middle 15,203 66,895 66,363 15,825
Walnut Hill Elem/Middle 160,308 142,545 136,083 165,770
B. T. Washington High 44 965 225 999 229,143 41,621
Werner Park Elemenlary 13,774 23,755 21,960 15,569
West Shreveport Elementary 8,974 38,168 33,120 14,022
Westwood Elementary 11,584 27 258 27,196 11,656
Woodlawn High 74,926 232,178 239,419 G7.685
Youree Drive Middle 108,719 155,158 166,752 07,125

TOTAL

2,466 452

wdﬂﬂl-h-m

8]

8,296,202

_:“_-h

8,225 782

“._A:*

r——— ey, e —  w

2 536 872

i el
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

SCHOOL ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
Schedule of Changes in Deposits Due Others

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Exhibit 20

Balance, Balance,

SCHOOL ______Beginning Additions Deductions ___Ending

Alexander Special Education $ 10,064 9,734 12,643 7,155
Arthur Circle Elementary 14 566 44,723 39,023 20 266
Atkins Elementary 7,198 19,256 21,704 4,750
Barrett Elementary 114 17,084 16,985 1,203
Bethune Middle 5119 18,002 17,131 SRYIN
Donnie Bickham Middle 16,080 162,627 154,260 14 238
Blanchard Elementary 22,402 44,143 35,204 31 341
Broadmoor Elementary 65,901 161,365 182,914 44 452
Byrd High 133,100 878,700 823,375 1868 425
Caddo Career Center 31,385 151,832 139,708 434509
Caddo Exceptional 4,784 4,695 6,768 2711
Caddo Heights Elementary 1,510 21,005 21,508 1 .GO7
Caddo Magnet High 141,914 556,008 580,747 120,225
Caddo Middle Magnet 57,606 191,862 193,196 e 272
Captain Shreve High 193,498 376,601 343,685 224,404
Central Elementary 22,804 11,1386 11,150 72780
Cherokee Park Elementary 10,255 18,906 18,364 10,797
Claiborne Elementary 11,320 39,398 37,467 13,761
J. S. Clark Middle 53,273 106,669 106,537 3,405
Creswell Elementary 10,547 35,136 34,708 10,975
Eden Gardens Fundamental 48,143 48,786 60,2435 35,694
Eighty-First St. ECE 6,680 13,752 12,678 7.754
Fairfield Elementary 2,997 15,243 14,544 3.695
Fair Park High 54,277 225117 236,152 43 242
Forest Hill Elementary 26,811 91,425 87,463 30,773
Green Oaks High 27,513 142,353 146,687 23179
George P. Hendrix Elementary 3,380 10,612 0,933 4 065
Hamilton Terrace Learning Ctr. 64,578 17,480 40,426 41 632
Herndon Middle Magnet 54,623 270,089 279,715 44 997
Hillsdale Elementary 10,715 30,250 25,573 15 392
Hollywood Middle 19,804 44 675 41,543 22 936
Hosstori Elementary 1,544 11,803 11,653 1.784
Huntington High 110,696 382,588 355,164 138,120
Ingersoll Elementary 12,129 8,659 0,041 11,757
J. B. Harville SAFS 568 210 604 174
Judson Fundamental Elementary 15,844 74,736 75,5685 14 995
Keithville Elem/Middie 20,788 132,732 138,879 14 6441
Lakeshore Elementary 15,137 37,764 38,166 14 735
Laurel Street Early Childhood . 1,221 950 973 1198
Linear Middle 3,378 31,665 26,382 & 561
Linwood Middle 22,833 77,870 76,571 24 132
Midway Middle Schaol 17,212 36,059 35,220 18 051

80
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combining Statement of Changes In Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

ASSETS
Investments

LIABILITIES
Deferred compensation payable

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deferred compensalion payable
Deposits due others

Total liabilities

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997

Balance,
July 1, 1996 Additions ___Deductions
v NEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN*****
$ 2675684 $___ 1 342,243 B, 199,736
$ 2675684 $_ 1,342,243 % _ 199,736
i'k!:*#h*i**i*ALL AGENCY FU"DS****#*#****#
$ 2208641 % 8122278 $ 8,141,680
2950450 1.5659878 321,919
b 5159091 $____ 9688257 $ 8463599
% 14,656 % 27,834 $ 14,656
2,675,684 1,342,243 199,736
2468.751 8,318,180 8,249 207

$ 5159001 $_ 9688257 §__ _ 8463500

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.,
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Exhibit 19

Balance,
June 30, 1897

§ 3818 191
§ 3,818,191
$ 2,189 23¢
4,194,510
§_ 6,383,740
$ 27 834
3,818,141
3 6383 749
(CONCLUE:()




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combining Statement of Changes In Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalenis

Investments

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deposits due others

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deposits due others

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Exhibit 19
Balance, Balance,
July 1, 1996 __Additions ___Deductions June 30, 1997

wievGCHOOL ACTIVITY FUND™™***

$ 2206,342 9 8005151 % 8118255 $ 2,183,238
274,766 223736 122.183

—— — ———— 1

$ 2481108 $ 8318887 $ 8240438 § 2559557

$ 14656 $ 22685 9 14656 % 22 GBS
2 466 452 8206202 8,225 782 2 536,872
$ 2481108 $ 8318887 $___ _ 8240438 § 2559557

wxCENTRAL OFFICE CONCESSION FUND****

$__..2200 $___ 27127 $___ 23426 3 6000

$ 0 % 5149 3 0 & 5 140
2200 21978 23425 &
$ .22 $___ 27127 $___ 23425 § 6,00

(CONTINUE D,

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combining Balance Sheet - All Trust and Agency Funds
June 30, 1997 Exhibit 18

NON EXPENDABLE

TRUST o AGENCY FUNDS
CADDO SCHOOGL CENTRAL DEFERRED
EDUCATIONAL ACTIVITY OFFICE COMPENSATION
EXCELLENCE ____FUNDS CONCESSION _ PLAN __TOTAL
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents $ 331 $ 2,183,238 % 6,001 % 0 § 2,189 570
Investments 1,764,100 376,319 C 3,818,191 h 058 610
Interest receivable 41935 0 G 0 41935
Tolal assets b 1,806,366 §=m=?_:j559é_§l'__{': 9 6,001 $ 3,818,191 $ 8100115
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities.
Accounts payable $ 0O % 22685 % 5149 & D § 27 834
Deposits due others O 2,536,872 852 0 2537 724
Deferred compensation
payable o 0 0 3.818,191 3,618 191
Total liabilities $ 0 $ 2559557 § 6,001 & 3818191 $  6,353749
Fund Balance:
Reserved for instructional
enhancement 3 1806366 $ 0 $ 0 % D $ 186X 366
Tote! fund balance $ 1806366 & 0 % 0 % 0 $  1,83L.366
Total liabilities and fund balance $_ 1,806,366 $ 2559557 3§ 6,001 % 3818191 ¢ 8130115

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

The nonexpendable trust fund is used to account for assets of the School Board held in trust, for which the principal

may not be spent.

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the Board in a fiduciary capacity. These funds arc custodial
in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

The following activitics are reported in this section:

«  Caddo Educational Excellence Nonexpendable Trust Fund

e School Activity Agency Funds

+  Central Officec Concession Agency Fund

»  Deferred Compensation Plan Agency Fund




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund tlalances -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Exhibit 17

= MISCELLANEQUS STATE/FEDERAL GRANTS*™

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Local sources:
Interest earnings $ 0% 800 $ 800
Other 0 113,000 113,000
State sources:
Other 307,117 207,715 (99,402)
Federal sources 436,615 443,235 6,620
Total Revenues $ 743,732 % 764,750 % 21,018
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support senvices:
Regular programs $ 741,962 $ 605,337 § 136,625
General adminisiration 1,770 5,438 (3,668
School administration 0 14,481 (14.481)
Business services 0 41 (41)
Plant services 0 2,131 (2.131)
Student transportation services 0 23 561 (23,501)
Total Expenditures $ 743,732 § 650,989 $ 92,743
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 113,761 $ 113,761
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 0
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 0% 113,761 $ 113,761

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Elalances -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds

REVENUES
Federal sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services .
Instruction

School administration
Student transportation services

Total Expenditures

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997

Exhibit 16

*****it*#t*i*i*‘] RO'I'C CAREER ACADEMY****‘*ii*i wad

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL  (UNFAVORABLE}
$ 250,000 $ 264,565 $ 14,565
$ 250,000 $ 264,565 $ 14.56¢
250,000 $ 260,183 $ (10,183)
0 3,832 (3.832)
0 550 (ool
250,000 $ 264,565 (14,065)
C9% 0% 0
0 0 0
$ 0% cg 0

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Exhibi 15

W i e v e v ke bk o A ok i***i#**iﬂ*JTPA*** shr v 7 e i e ol ok e ol ok o o v e e o il

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ~___ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Federal sources $ 57,082 § 54,161 $ (2,921)
Total Revenues $ 57,082 & 54,161 $ (2,9217)
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Instruction and support services :
Instruction $ 57,082 % 48,313 $ 8,760
School administration D 253 (253
Plant services O 1.284 (1,284}
Student transportation services 3 0 4,311 (4,311)
Total Expendilures $ 67,082 b 54,161 2,921
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 03 0% 0
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR _ 0 0 Y
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 0% 0% L

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.

12




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL. BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund [3alances -

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997

Exhibit 14

ok ok Ko kol ke e ke ***t**i:*tic;OALS 2000*** et o e o e vl o o e o ol b

VARIANCE
| FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {(UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Federal sources $ 186,785 $ 178,286 $ (7,489)
Total Revenues $ 186,785 $ 179,296 $ (7,4869)
EXPENDITURES
Current.
instruction and support services:
Instruction $ 184,701 $ 177.323 $ 7.378
General administration 2,084 1,873 111
Total Expenditures b 186,785 $ 179.296 $ 7,489
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% D% 0
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 o
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 3 0% 0% _ 0

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL. BOARD
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balarnces -
Budget (GAAP Basis} and Actual - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Exhibit 13

*****i**ﬁ****i*CHIL[, NLITRIT'OH PROGRAM*#**** L IR

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ___ ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Local sources:
Interest earnings $ 160,000 & 456,452 $ 206,457
Food services 2,190,000 2,363,957 173,957
Other 0 300 300
State sources
Equalization 3,655,755 3,655,752 {3
Other 0 890,510 90,510
Federal sources 8,580,510 10,006,288 1,415,778
Total revenues $ 14596265 § 16,673259 1,876,994
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Food services $ 17,103,610 $ 17,242622 % (139,112}
Total expenditures ¢ 17,103,610 $  17,242622 $ (139,112
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (2,507,245) (669,363) $ 1,837,882
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out $ 0 % (131,430) $ (131,430)
Olher s.ources 0 1,232 1,232
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ 0%  (130,198)% _ _ (130,10%)
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES $ (2,5607,245) $ (799,561) $ 1,707,684
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 8670,719_ 8,670,719 o
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 6163474 § 7,871,158 $ 1,707,684

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Staterment of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Elalances -

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Exhibit 12

**************VOCJ“;TI()NAL EDU CATION****:&***#*‘!

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ____ACTUAL (UNFAVORABI E)
REVENUES
Federal sources $ 783,363 $ 754647 % (28,716)
Total Revenues $ 783,363 3 754,647 $ (28,716)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services:
Instruction $ 783,363 $ 754,647 $ 28,716
Total Expenditures $ 783,363 $ 754647 $ 28,716
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 0% {)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 o
FUND BALANGES AT END OF YEAR $ 0% 0$ o

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Eialances -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Furids
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Exhibit 11

REVENUES
| ocal solirces:
Other

State sources
Federal sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instruction and support services:
Regular programs
General administration

Total Expenditures

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

******************ADIU L'I' EDUCAT'ON*#*********### L R

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
_ BUDGET____ ACTUAL _ (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 0% 18,375 $ 18,375
131,409 131,380 (2¢)
204,390 198 276 (6,114)
$ 335,799 § 348,031 $ 12,232
$ 332,017 $ 344,394 $ (12.377)
3,782 1,768 2,014
S 335799 $ 346,162 $ (10,3¢3)
$ 0% 1,869 $ 1,860
1,371 1,371 .0
S 13748 32408  180Y

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Ealances -

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Exhibit 10

****tt**n*t*t*****BG STATE FUND*t**ttt*t*tﬁ*tﬁ*in TR

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET _ ACTUAL (UNFAVORABL.E)
REVENUES
State sources:
Equalization $ 141,793 % 140,638 $ (1,15%;
Other 957,724 040,891 (16,8373,
Total Revenues $ 1,099,517 % 1,081528 § (17.,08%)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services:
Regular programs 3 1,004,327 % 071,510 $ 32,817
Instructional staff support 60,052 66,505 (6.543)
Schootl administration 0 415 (415)
Business services 0 871 (871)
Student transportation services 0 7,000 (7,000)
Community service programs _ 0 35,138 (35,13¢8)
Total Expenditures $ 1,064,379 $ 1,081,629 § (17,150}
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 35,138 $ 0% (35,13%)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operaling transfer out $ (35,138} $ 0% 35,136
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ (35,138) & 0% 35,136
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES $ 0 % 0% {
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ) O D 0
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 0% 0% _ O

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1987 Exhibit &

o o o ke ok ok *****t**#*****l:AMILY SU PPO RT*** e e ek pir ol A ek o

VARIANCE
FAVORABLL
BUDGET ACTUAL {(UNFAVORABL.E)
REVENUES
Local sources:
Other $ 0% 84 $ &4
Federal sources 766,630 677,219 (89.411)
Total Revenues 3 766,630 3 677,303 % (88,327)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services:
Instruction $ 592,805 § 510,917 $ 81,888
Student services 20,300 20,339 (39)
School administration 71,600 28,712 42 88&
Plant services 59,924 65,827 (5,903)
Tota! Expenditures $ 744629 $ 625795 % 118,834
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 22001 % 51,508 & 29 507
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 120,645 120,645 0
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 3 142646 $ 172153 $_ 29507

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Exhibit &

*t*#*t********l*tlTl'lrLE Iv (DRUG_FREE)********I&***.in-ii

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
____BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Federal sources $ 288,189 $ 255721 % (32.468)
Total Revenues $ 288,189 $ 255,721 $ (32,408)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services:
Instruction 280,731 % 246177 $ 34 554
General administration 7,458 7,295 163
Business services O 680 (680)
Plani services 0 1,549 (1,54%)
Student transportation services 0 20 (20
Total Expenditures 288,189 § 2566721 % 32,468
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 0% 0% 0
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 0
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 0% 0% O

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Exhibit 7
tﬁ*t*#**t**t**ﬁ**i*i**'rl TLE XIXii#i*#iﬁ#**#*##*ﬁk*iﬁ hha»
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET = ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Federal sources $ 219,190 % 146,348 § (72,842)
Total Revenues 3 219,190 % 146,348 $ (72,842)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services:
Instruction $ 213,566 3 141,213 $ 72.353
General administration 5,624 4 724 307
Plant services O 411 _(411)
Total Expenditures d 219,190 § 146,348 $ 72,842
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 0% 0
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR O 0 ¢
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 03 0 $ O

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, l.ouisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1987 Exhibit &
o R 3 o v T e o o ok o e ol ol ke e bl ok o ilr!:*i:TITLE ]I**tt****i*t****ﬂ**ti (T TTXER
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Federal sources $ 278,119 $ 251,464 $ {26,655)
Total Revenues P 278,119 % 251,464 $ {26,655)
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Instruction and support services:
Instruction $ 270,721 § 241,950 $ 28771
General administration 7,398 0418 (2,020
Business services 0 96 e
Total Expenditures $ 278,119 $ 251,464 $ 26,6500
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 0% (
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 o
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 0% 03 0

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Shreveport, L.ouisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds

REVENLIES
Federal sources

Total Kevenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services:
Instruction
General administration
School administration
Business services
Plani services

Student transportation services

Total Expenditures

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997

Exhibit &

***t****i#i*i***ts P]ECIAL EDUCATION***********i ek d A

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
__ BUDGET ACTUAL  (UNFAVORABLE,)

$ 2.231,308 $ 2335843 $ 104,53%
3 2231308 § 2335843 % 104,535
$ 2,179,953 % 2234561 % (54,608}
51,355 59 305 (7,950}
0 782 (782)
0 352 (352)
0 22,123 (22,123)
0 18,720 (18,720)
$ 2231308 $ 2.335843 % {104,53%)
$ 03 0% 0
0 0 o
$ . os ___ 0% g

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Shreveport, l.ouisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997

REVENUES
Federal sources

Total Kevenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services:
Instruction
General administration

Total Expenditures

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END QOF YEAR

Exhibit 4
**#**#*i*i**i*it*ii-*i*il'*TITLE Vliiitiﬁ*t**iﬁ*ii**ii Wl i
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL  (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 265,870 $ 257,727 $ (8,143)
3 265870 % 257,727 $ (B,143)
5 263,862 % 253,824 % O a93h
2.008 3,803 (1.795)
P 265870 $ 257,727 % 8,144
$ 0% 0% O
i 0 0_ .G
$ 0% o 0

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE: AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds

REVENUES
Local sources:
Interest earnings

Federal sources
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current;
Instruction and support services:
Instruction
General administration
School administration

Business services
Plant services

Community service programs

Total Expenditures

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997

Exhibit 3

SRRk Rk dk Rk kR ik kkok ik #'IH'TITLE It!: Mk AhRN Ak kN kA dhkd kd s

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE:
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

$ D% 1,343 § 1,34%
_ 12,371,620 11,970,383 (401,237)
$ 123716203 11971726 % (3899,804)
$ 12,087,773 % 10,038,782 $ 1,148,941
283.847 325,753 (41,904)
0 112,729 (112,729)
0 23.306 (23,305)
0 147 (147)
0 271,009 (571,008)
$ 123716203 11971726 $ 399,804
3 0% 0% €
0 O 0
$ o 0% L

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Exhibit 2
JROTC MISCELLLANEQUS
GOALS CAREER STATE/FEDERAL
2000 _ JTPA ACADEMY GRANTS  TOTAL
$ 0% 0% 0% 0% 0
0 0 O 0 (131,430)
c_ 0 0 I 1,232
$ 0% ... 0% 0% ... 0% (130,198)
$ 0% 0% 0% 113,761 $ (632,423)
0 . 0 N ¢ 8,792,735
$ 08 0% 0% 1137618 8,160,312
(CONCLUDED)
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997

CHILD
ADULT VOCATIONAL NUTRITION
__EDUCATION  EDUCATION PROGRAM

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers in $ 0% C$ ¢

Operating transfers out 0 0 (131,430)

Other sources-proceeds from the sale of fixed assets D 0 1,232

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 3 G b 0% {130,198)
EXCESS (Deficiency} OF REVENUES AND

OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER USES $ 1,868 & 0% (799.,561)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR N 1,371 0 8,670,714
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 3 32405 0% 7,871 154

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Exhibit 2

JROTC  MISCELLANEOUS
GOALS CAREER  STATE/FEDERAL
2000 JTPA ACADEMY _ GRANTS TOTAL
$ 0% 0% 0% 800 $ 458,595
0 0 0 0 2,363,957
0 0 0 113,000 131,759
0 0 0 0 3,796,390
0 0 0 207,715 1,370,496
179296 54,161 264,565 443,235 27,795,173
$ 179,296 $ 54,161 $ 264,565 $ 764,750 $ 35,916,370
$ 13,438 $ 0$ 0% 0$ 887,676
0 0 0 63,578 761,315
61,758 42,549 259 830 391,743 13,126,915
0 0 0 4,725 1,160,574
102,127 5,764 353 145,291 1,879,685
1,973 0 0 5,438 419,477
0 253 3,832 14,481 161,204
0 0 0 41 25,548
0 1,284 0 2,131 03,472
0 4,311 550 23,561 54,162
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 17,242,420
0 0 0 0 606,147
0 e © 0 ___ 0 0.
$ 179206 $ 54161 $ 264,565 $ 6509680 $ 36,418,595
$ 0% _ 0% 0% 113,761 S (502,225}

(CONTINUED)




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, l.ouisiana

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997

CHILD
ADULT VOCATIONAL NUTRITION
__EDUCATION EDUCATION PROGRAM

REVENUES
Local sources:

Interest earnings $ 03 0% 456,457

Food services 0 0 2,363,957

Other 18,375 0 300
State sources:

Equalization 0 0 3,655,702

Other 131,380 D 90,510
Federal sources 198,276 754,647 10,006,288

Total Revenues $ 348,031 % 754647 $ 16573209
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction:
Regular programs ) 0% 0% ()
Special Programs 0 0 {
Other instruction 344 394 754,647 0
Support services:
Student services 0 0 ()
Instructional staff support 0 0 (!
General administration 1,768 0 [
School administration 0 0 [
Business services 0 0 20/
Plant services O 0 (;
Student transportation services O O {;
Central services 0 D (:
Food services 0 0 17,242 421
Community service program 0 0 {
Facilities acquisition and construction 0 0O I
Total Expenditures $ 346,162 & 754647 $ 17242627

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
QOVER EXPENDITURES

% 1.869 $

0% (669,363




Exhibit 2
TITLE IV FAMILY 8G STATE

TITLEXIX _ _(DRUG-FREE) _ SUPPORT _____ FUND

$ 0 $ 0 $ 0% 0
0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

$ 0% I 0% .
$ 0$ 0§ 51,508 $ 0
0 D 120645 0

03 003 1724538 O

(CONTINUED)
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operalting transfers in
Operating transfers out
Other sources-proceeds from the sale of fixed assets

Total Other Financing Sources {IUses)

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

SPECIAL

"TITLEI _ TITLE VI EDUCATION  TITLED

$ 0% 2% 0% (
0 0 0 (

_ - 0 __ J c___ (
3 .03 SR 0% . n
b 0% 0% 0% (1
0 n 0 ¢

] — T ——

S . O ) S
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t-xhibit 2

TITLE IV FAMILY 8G STATE
TITLEXIX _ (DRUG-FREE) _ SUPPORT ______FUND
$ 0% 0 $ 0% 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 84 0
0 0 0 140,638
0 0 0 040,891
146,348 255 721 677219 0
$ 146,348 $ 265,721 % 677,303 3 1,081,528
$ 0$ 0% 0% §74,238
0 0 0 07 272
0 19,877 510,917 0
141,213 205,242 20,339 0
0 21,058 0 66,595
4,724 7,295 0 0
0 0 28,712 415
0 680 0 871
411 1,540 65.827 0
0 20 0 7,000
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 35,138
e o _ 0 o ___ ... 0
$ 146,348 § 255,721 % 625,795 % ___ 1,081,529
$ _ 0% 0% 51,508 % )

(CONTINUED)




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997

SPECIAL
___ _TITLEI TITLEVI  EDUCATION TITLE Il
REVENUES
Local sources:
Interest earnings $ 1,343 % 0% 0% C
Food services 0 0 0 q
Other 0 0 0 q
State sources:
Equalization 0 0 0 C
Other 0 0 0 (
Federal sources 11,970,383 _ 257,727 2,335,843 251,464
Total Revenues $ 11971726 % 257,727 $ 2,335843 % 251,464
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction:
Regular programs $ 0% 0% 0% ¢
Special Programs 0 ( 600,028 437
Other instruction 10,145,589 253 924 188,824 152 863
supporl services:
Student services 272,016 ¢ 517,039 {
Instructional staff support 521,177 C 928,670 88,650
GGeneral administration 325,763 3,805 59.305 g 41&
School administration 112,729 O 182 0
Business services 23,306 C 352 Qs
Plant services 147 C 22,123 ()
Student transportation services 0 C 18,720 (1
Central services 0 C 0 0
Food services 0 { 0 (
Community service program 571,009 C 0 4
Facilities acquisition and construction I 0 O o N ¢
Total Expenditures $ 11,971,726 % 257721 $ 2,335843 % 251,454
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 3% 0% 0% . ¢
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Exhibit 1

JROTC MISCELLANEOUS

GOALS CAREER  STATE/FEDERAL
2000 _ JTPA ACADEMY GRANTS TOTAL
$ 0$ 146 $ 15,560 $ 127,153 $ 8,988,046
90,816 17,034 38,257 263,472 2,255,335
0 0 0 0 0
~ S 0 0 201,312
$ %0816 __ 17180% 53817 $ 390625 % 11445593
$ 0 $ 0$ 0 $ 16,125 $ 1,378,143
90,816 17,180 0 196,581 1,265,564
0 0 53817 64,158 641,674
$ 00,816 $ 17,180 % 23817 % . 276864 % 3,285,287
$ 0% 0% 0% 0% 441,656
0 0 0 0 201,312
0 0 0 0 1,577,705
0 0 0 0 4,158,83€
R . 0 ____.._.113761 1,780,805
o o 0 113,761 8,160,312
$ 90,816 $ 71808 53817 % 390625 % 11445503
(CONCLUDED)
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, LLouisiana

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 1997

CHILD
ADULT VOCATIONAL NUTRITION
__EDUCATION _ EDUCATION PROGRAM

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 21448 % 43,623 % 8,244 977
Receivables 70,020 161,985 134 174
Interfund receivables 0 0 0
Inventory _ O 0 201,312
Total Assets $_ 01468 3 205608 § 8,580,413
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accourds, salaries and other payables $ 6,460 % 7,245 $ 709,255
Interfunid payable 81,768 196,000 0
Deferred revenues _ o 2,363 0
Total Liabilities $ 88,228 205,608 $ 709,255
Fund Balances:

Reserved for encumbrances $ 0% 0% 431,005

Reserved for inventory 0 0 201,312
Unreserved

Designated for contingencies 0 0 1,677,703

Designated for equipment replacement 0 0 4,158 836

Undesignated _ 3,240 0 1,502,301
Total Fund Balances $ 3,240 8 0% 7,871,108
TOTAL LIABILITI:=S AND FUND BALANCES $ 914685 206608 $ 8680413

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Exhibit 1

TITLE IV FAMILY 8G STATE

TITLEXIX  (DRUG-FREE) __ SUPPORT FUND

$ 214,939 $ 17,219 $ 140,366 $ 25,813
0 50,799 112,870 294,348

0 0 0 0

_ 0 ___ 0 0 R
2149398 68018%  253236% ___ 9520161
6,768 5,712 81,083 4,989

0 62,306 0 314,755

208171 0 0 A7

$ 214,939 § .. 68,018 % 81,083 320,161
$ 0 $ 0% 10,650 $ 0
0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

S 0 161,503 )

L o 0 172,153 0

$ _214939% 68018 %  253236% ___ 320161

(CONTINUED)

49




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Shreveport, Louisiana

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds:

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables
Interfund receivables
inventory

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts, salaries and other payables
Interfund payable
Deferred revenues

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances

Reserved for inventory

Unreserved
Designated for contingencies
Designated for equipment replacement
Undesignated

Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AN FUND BALANCES

June 30, 1997

SPECIAL

TITLEDL TITLE VI EDUCATION TITLE Il
% 108,364 $ 11 $ 29327 % C
604 740 18,406 284 624 23,750
0 0 0 C
.0 0 0 .. G
$ ... 8031048 18507 % 3139561 % 237730
498,980 0 41,526 C
O 18,507 269521 18,130
304,124 0 2,904 5620
$ 803,104 $ 18,507 $ 313.951 % 23,750
$ 0% 0% 0% C
) 0 0 O
0 0 0 (i
0 0 0 (i
N ] 0 0 _ Q
0 0 o__ .. O
$__.....803104 % 18507 % 313951 % 23,750
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Concluded)

JROTC CAREER ACADEMY

JROTC is a federally funded program through the Department of Defense for C. E. Byrd High School Carcor
Acadcmy.

MISCELLANEOQUS STATE/FEDERAL GRANTS

The fund includes various small state and {fcderal {funded grants.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

ADULT EDUCATION

To improve cducational opportunities for adults and 1o encourage the cstablishment of adult education program.
that will cnable all adults to acquirc basic cducational skills necessary 1o function 11 a literatle socicly, cnable adults
who so desire to complete secondary school, and enable adults 1o benefit from job training and retraining programs
and obtain productive ecmployment 1o more fully cnjoy the benefits and responsibilities of citizenship.

Speccial emphasis 1s given (o programs of instruction in computational skills and in speaking, rcading, or writing
English for thosc adults who arc cducationally disadvantaged.

VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

To make the United Staics more competitive in the world economy by devclopmg more fully the academic andd
occupational skills of all scgmoents of the population, pnncipally through concentrating resources on mmprovine
cducational programs lcading to academic and occupational skills needed 1o work 1n a technologically advance.]
socicly.

CHILD NUTRITION PROGRAM

To assist through cash grants and food donations in providing a nutritious breakfast and lunch scrvice for school
students and to encourage the domestic consumption of nutritious agricultural commoditics.

GOALS 2000

To provide grants to State Education Agencics (SEAs) on a formula basis to supporl the development and
implementation of comprchensive reform plans at the state, local, and school levels 1o improve the teaching and
Icarning of all children. To support top down and bottom up reform through subgrants by SEAs of 90 percent of
these grant funds to local education agencics (LIZAs) and through LEAs to individual schools. To support the
cstablishment by states and localities of high standards 1n their core content arcas. All aspects of the educational
process are aligned including, but not limited to assessments, curriculum, professional development, and pre-service
training,

JTPA

To provide job traming and related assistance to economically disadvantaged individuals and others who facc
significant employment barriers. The ultimate goal of the Act is to move trainces info permancnt, sclf-sustaining
cmployraent.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOIL. BOARD
Shreveport, Louistana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

TITLE 1l

To mprove the skills of tcachers and the quality of instruction in mathematics and science, also to increase the
acccssibility of such instruction to all students.

TITLE XIX

This fund 15 a federally funded program to improve the health status of children by providing preventive services
health assessments, and the nccessary diagnosis, treatment and follow-up carc in the context of an ongoiny
rclationship between the patient and other health care providers.

TITLE 1V - (DRUG-FREE)

v

To cstablish statc and local programs of alcohol and drug abusc education and prevention coordinated with related
community cfforts and resources.

FAMILY SUPPORT

Family Supporl was cstablished to account for the receipts and expenditures of a federally funded program to
provide educational services to participate in Project Independence. These educational scrvices include training
welfare mothers with job skills while providing day-care for their children,

8G STATE FUND

The 8G state {fund 1s a program to provide enhancement 1o ¢lementary, sccondary and vocational programs funde)
through the State Minimum Foundation Program.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Shreveport, J.ousiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

TITLE1

To improve the cducational opportunitics of educationally deprived children by helping them succeed in the regula
school program, aitain grade level proficiency and improve achicvement in basic and more advanced skills
Primarily for provision of compcnsatory instructional activitics 10 educationally deprived children that reside in Jow-
income arcas and have been sclected on the basis of a necds asscssment.  Scrvices supplement, not supplant, thos.
normally provided by state and local cducational agencics.

TITLE VI

To assist state and local cducational agencics to improve clementary and sccondary cducation.

Grants arc awardcd for students at risk of failure in school; instructional matcrials; school-wide improvements and
cffective school programs; training and profcssional devclopment; carly identification of children with rcadin:
disabilitics, personal excellence of students and student achicvements; and innovative enhancements projects to th.
cducational program and climatc of the school.

SPECIAL EDUCATION

SPECIAL EDUCATION - STATE GRANTS

To provide grants {o states to assist them m providing a {frec appropriate public cducation 1o all children with
disabilitics.

PAYMENTS TO STATES FOR CHILD CARE ASSISTANCE

To make grants available to assist low-income familics with child care services. The purpose of the progran:
1$ to increasc the availability, affordability, and quality of child carc and to increase the availability of carls
childhood development and before- and afier-school programs.

PRESCHOOIL GRANTS

To provide grants to slates 1o assist them in providing a frec appropriate public education to preschool disablc.
children aged three through five years.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOIL. BOARD
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND AND ACCOUNT GROUP
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, L.omsiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

NOTE 24 - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) TO ACTUAL RECONCILIATION

The capital project fund i1s budgeted on a cash basis and is reported for financial statements purposcs on a GAAP
basis.

Fund balance (deficit) - per Statement B $( 675,0506)
(GAAP Reporting Purposes)
To chminate the clfects of recording
accounts pavable for GAAP purposcs 1,029 639

Fund balance - per Statement C $ 354583
(Budget Reporting Purposes)
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

NOTE 21 - NEW FUNDS AND CHANGE IN FUND CLASSIFICATION

The School Board cstablished the Goals 2000 fund and the JTPA fund during the year ended June 30, 1997. Thes
funds are accounicd for as special revenue funds.

The Caddo Educational Excellence Fund has been reclassificd from a special revenue fund to a nonexpendable trus!
fund cffective July 1, 1996 to more accurately reflect the terms of the fund as created by state law. The fund balance
at July 1, 1996 was $763,2065.

NOTE 22 - PRIOR-PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The School Board has not accrued sales tax revenue in prior years for the amounts collected from vendors for Junwe
sales remitted to the School Board in July. In accordance with Statement No. 22 of the Governmental Accountin
Standards Board, Accounting for Taxpaver - Assessed Tax Revenues in Governmental Funds, these revenues aie
10 be accrucd. $4,115,978 was collected in June 1996 and remitted to the School Board in July 1996, This amoun:
pertains o prior-ycar revenucs and is treated as a correction of a material error with a prior-period adjustment in the

financial statcments.

NOTE 23 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In a special election held October 18, 1997, the citizens of Caddo Parish authorized the 1ssuance of up 1o
$48.000,000 of gencral obligation bonds. The procceds from the bonds arc to be used for the acquisition an
construction of new classrooms at existing public schools in Caddo Parish. The bonds arc to be repaid fron
revenucs generated by a 6.10 mill ad valorem tax. The bonds are cxpected to be issued sometime m 1998,

The citizens of Caddo Panish also authorized three ad valorem tax levies in the special election held October 1K,
1997. A 10-ycar 6.28 mil property tax was passed for renovation, repair and improvement of existing public schowl
buildings. A 10-ycar 1.50 mil property tax was passed for computers, software and peripheral equipment at public
schools, and a 10-ycar 21.79 mil property tax was passed for salarics and bencfits.

The School Board purchascd cleven buscs in October 1997, The total cost of the school buscs was approximatcly
$530,000.

The School Board received approximately $600,000 as a statc supplement in September 1997, The revenue is a one-
time supplement for the purpose of purchasing tcaching supplies.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, l.ouisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

NOTE 19 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION

Under the guidelines established 1n accordance with the Internal Revenue Code Section 457, the School Board has
a deferred compensation plan which is admimistered by First Financial Administrators, Inc. on bchalf of all
participating employees. The plan, mandatory for part-time, seasonal and temporary cmployees and voluntary for
all full-time employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future vears. The deferred pay and any
imcome carncd on it 1s not subjcct to income taxes uutil actually received bv the employec.  The deferred
compensation 1s not available to cmployecs until termination, retircment, death, or uaforesceable cmergency.

The asscis in the plans remain the properly of the School Board until paid or made available to participants, subjcol
only to the claims of the School Board's creditors. The participants have no vested interest or secured or preferred
position with respect to the assets or have any claim against the School Board, except as a genceral creditor, in an
amount cqual to the fair market value of the parlicipant's account.

It 1s the opinion of the School Board's legal counsel that the School Board is not liable for losscs arising froni
depreciation or shrinkage or shrinkage in the valuc of any mvestments acguired uvnder the deferred compensation
plans. However, the School Board belicves it has the duty of due carc that would be required of an ordinary prudent
investior. The School Board also belicves that it 1s unlikely that it will use the assets to satis{y the claims of genera!
creditors in the future. Transactions related to the deferred compensation plan arc recorded as an agency fund. The
asscts of the deferred compensation plan are staled at market value.

A summary of changes in deferred compensation payable for the year ended June 30, 1997 1s as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 1996 Additions Deductions  Jung 30, 1997
Decferred compensation payable $2.675.684 $1.342 243 $199.736 $3.818,19]

NOTE 20 - ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS FOR FRINGE BENEFITS AND SALARIES

On-behall’ payments for {rimge benefits and salarics are dircet payments made by an entity (the paying agent) 1o
third-party recipient for the employces of another, legally separate entity (the employer entity). GASB Statement
No. 24 rcquires cmployer governments to recognize revenue and expenditurcs or expenses for these on-behalf
paymgents.,

The state of Louisiana made pension contributions (regarding Professional Improvement Program) dircctly to the

Tcachers' Retirement System of Louisiana on behalf of the School Board in the anount of $270,534. This amounl
was recognized as statc revenue and a corresponding expenditure in the gencral fund from which the salary was pad
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NOTE 18 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The School Board initiated a risk management program for employees health insurance several years ago. ‘The
School Board terminated this employee health insurance program effective April 1, 1997. However, the Schoal
Board will honor all claims which occurred before Apnl 1, 1997 which had not been filed as of April 1, 1997 a-
long as these run-off claims are filed before April 1, 1998, All claims occurring on or after April 1, 1997 arc
covered under a fully insured employee health insurance plan.  All claims, regardless of the date of the claim, wil!
be assumed by the fully insured employec health insurance plan on April 1, 1998,

For the sclf-insurance plan premiums are paid into the internal service fund by all other funds and arc available (.
pay claims, claim rescrves and administrative costs of the program. During the fiscal year a total of $18,446,963
was paid in benefits and administrative costs. The School Board maintains stop-loss coverage with an insurance
company under its hcalth plan for losscs in excess of 105% of cxpected claims.  Interfund premiums are bascd
primarily upon the individual funds' payroll and arc reported as expenditurcs in the individual funds. All know«
claims filed and an estimate of incurred but not reporled claims based on experience of the School Board arc madu
and accrucd as nccessary in the financial statements.  The incurred but not reported claims at ycar end was
$1,758,416. The amount of the liability is the School Board's best cstimate using available information.

The internal service fund incurred a net loss during the fiscal year of $843,032 and at Junc 30, 1997 had a defica
rctained carnings of $498 349,

Changes in the reporied hability for the current and recent previous fiscal years arc as follows:

Beginning of Claims and Benefit Balancc at
Fiscal Ycar Changes 1n Payments Fiscal
Liabality Eslimates and Claims Year-End
Risk Management Activitics
(other than Group Health)
1995-1996 $ 678295 §F 715570 § 288,557 $1,105308
1996-1997 1.105.308 795.276 1,038,641 861943
Group Health Insurance
1995-1996 $5,091,806  $25,635,612  $24,609,434 $6,117,984
1996-1997 6,117,984 13,347,798 17,707,366 1,758,416

The School Board continues (o carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss except general liability. Settled
claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years.
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NOTE 17 - LITIGATION AND CLAIMS

Litigation

The School Board is a defendant in several lawsuits. Management and lcgal counsel for the School Board
belicve that the potential claims aganst the School Board not covered by msurance would not materially aflec
the School Board's combined financial position.

Tax Arbitrage Rebate

Under the Tax Reform Act of 1986, intercst carned on the debt procceds i ¢xcess of interest expensc prio
io the disbursement of the proceeds must be rebated to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). Management
bclieves there 1s no tax arbitrage hability at year end.

Grant Disallowances

The School Board participates in a number of statc and federally assisted grant programs. The programs
arc subject to comphance audits under the single audit approach. Such audits could lcad to requests for
reimbursement by the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. School Board
management belicves that the amount of disallowances, if any, which may arise from future audits will not be
matcrial.

Self-Insurance

The School Board is partially self-insured for workers' compensation, and was partially sclf-insurcd for
all claims occurring before April 1, 1997 for health msurance coverage. Clanns arc funded through emplovee
contributions and opcrating funds of the School Board. All known claims filed and an cstimaic of mcurr.d
but not reported claims based on expericnce of the School Board are made and accrued as necessary in the
financial statcments. A portion of fund balance of the general fund has been designated for payment of futurc
claims.

NOTE 18 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The School Board is exposecd to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of asscts.
crrors and omissions; mjurics 1o cmployees; and natural disasters. The School Board 1s a defendant in scveral
lawsuits involving civil actions. The School Board 1s sclf-insured for losses up to $200,000. The School Board
currently reports all of its risk management activitics exeept for employees' health imsurance 1n the general fund and
the General Long Term Debt Account Group. An insurance policy covers individual claims in excess of $200,000
Claims expenditurcs and habilitics are reported when 1t 1s probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that
loss can be reasonably estimated. Thesc losses include an estimate of claims that have been incurred but no
reported. This liability 1s the School Board's best estimate basced on available information.

At Junc 30, 1997, $270,327 of the fund balance of the general fund 1s designated for payment of future claims.

38




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL. BOARD
Shreveport, l.ouisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

NOTE 15 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Interfund operating transfers:

Opcrating transfers for the year ended June 30, 1997, were as follows:

Fund In Out
General % - $1.700,000
Special Revenuc:

Child Nutrition Program - 131,430
Capital Projccts:

Capital Projccel 1,131,430
Internal Scrvice:

Group Hospitalization 700,000 3

Total $1.831,430 $1,831.43(

NOTE 16 - RESERVED AND DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES

Reservations:

Encumbrances Encumbrances outstanding at year-cnd represent the estimated amount the School Boaid
intends 1o honor as a commitment regardless of the lapsc in the appropriation.

Prepaid Items Fund balance is reserved for prepaid items which indicates that {fund balances 1n that
amount 1s not available for appropriation and cxpenditures.

Inventory This amount represents the portion of fund balance relating to inventory on hand which 15
thercfore unavailable to be cxpended for other purposcs.

Dcbt Service This amount represents the portion of fund balance that has been reserved i the debt service
fund for futurc payment of principal and inicrest onn bonded debt,

Instructional Enhancement This amount represents the portion of fund balance that has been rescrved
in the Caddo Educational Exccllence fund (noncxpendable trust).

Designations;

Designated for Contingencies This amount represents a portion of fund balance that has been designatad
to fund possible losses from lawsuits and self-insurance liabihty.

Designated for Equipment Replacement This amount has been accumulated over several years to fund
the replacement or updating of data proccssing cquipment.
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NOTE 14 - CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Gengeral
Obligation Interest Duc On

Years Ending Jung 30, Bonds Pavable _Bonds Pavabic Total
1998 $ 2,705,000 $1,234.065 § 3,939,065
1999 2,865,000 1,114,230 3,979,230
2000 3,025,000 081,625 4,006,625
2001 3,200,000 835,250 4,035,250
2002 3,400,000 675,150 4,075,150
2003-2005 11.595.000 921265 12.516,265

Total $26.790.000 $5.761.585  $32,55] 585

In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 39:562, the School Board s legally restricted from incurnmny
long-tcrm bonded debt in excess of 35 percent of the asscssed value of taxable property. At Junc 30, 1997, (lw
statutory limit is $345,834,423, and net outstanding bonded debt totals $25,691,421.

NOTE 15 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS
Interfund reccivables/payables at June 30, 1997, were as follows:

Interfund receivables/payables:

Recervable Payablc
General Fund $1,265,564 $
Special Revenue Funds:
Title VI - 18,507
Special Education - 269521
Title 11 - 18,1310
Tatle IV (Drug-Free) - 62,300
8G State IFund - 314,755
Adult Education - 81,704
Vocational Education - 196,000
Goals 2000 - 90,816
JTPA - 17,180
Miscellancous State/Federal Grants - 196,58 ]
Total $1.205.5064 $1,265,56
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NOTE 13 - CHANGES IN AGENCY FUNDS DEPOSITS DUE OTHERS

A summary of changes in agency funds deposits due others for the year ended June 50, 1997 is as {ollows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 1996 Additions Deductions Junc 30, 1997
Agency funds:
School activity $2.466,452 $8.296.202 $8.225.782 $2.536,87>
Central officc concession 2,299 21,978 23.425 RA%
$2.408.751 $8.318.180 $8.249 207 $2.537.724
NOTE 14 - CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
The following is a summary of the long-term obligation transactions for the year encled Junc 30, 1997:
Balance Debt Retired/ Balance
July 1, 1996 Additions _Payments Junc 30, 1997
13onds payablc $29.315,000 $ - $2.525,000 $26,790,00
Claims and judgments payable 594 343 - 25,928 568,415
Compensated abscnces payable - 13,317.935 - 294.650 _ . _13.612,5%5

$294.650 $2.550,928 $40,971.000

All School Board bonds outstanding at June 30, 1997, in the amount of $26,790,000, arc gencral obligation bonds
with maturity from 1997 to 2005 and interest rates from 2.65 {o 5.20 percent. Bond principal and nterest payabic
in the next fiscal year are $2,705,000 and $1,234,005, respectively. The individual 1ssuc 1s as {follows:

Remaining Final Principal
Issue Interest Payment Qutstanding
School District Datc Amount Rales Dug Junec 30, 1997
Refunding Bonds 1993 $28.265,000 2.65-52%  03-01-05 $26,790.000

All principal and intcrest requirements are funded in accordance with Louisiana law by annual ad valorem tax Ievy
on taxablc propertly within the parish and through general fund operations. At Junc: 30, 1997, the School Board hi-
accumulated $1,098.579 in the debt service fund for future debt requirements. The bonds arc duc as follows:
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NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

Tcachers' Retirement System of Louisiana Louisiana School Emplovees' Retirement System
Post Office Box 94123 Post Office Box 44516

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9123 Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804

(504) 925-6446 (504) 925-6484

NOTE 10 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In accordance with state statutes, the Caddo Parish School Board provides certain continuing health care and hit
insurarice benefits for its retired employees. Substantially all of the School Board s employecs become eligible for
these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the School Board. These benefits for retirees
and similar benefits for active employces were provided through a self-insurance program, whose monthly premiunis
arc paid jointly by the cmployees and the School Board. The cost of retiree benefits totaled $2,813,764 1n 1947 for
approximatcly 2,256 retirecs.

NOTE 11 - ACCOUNTS, SALARIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

The payables of $29,738,655 at Junc 30, 1997, are as follows:

Special Capital Intcrnal
General Revenue Projects Service  Agency Total

Salarics and withholding $23.647,537 $1,181.096 § 45,522 § - - $24.874, 155

Accounts 1,577,807 185,205 1,033,069 - 27834 2,823 90]%

Incurred but not reported claims 270,327 - - 1,758,416 ; 2.028,74-
Reimbursements due to

fcderal government - 11,842 - - - 11,84~

Total $25,495.671 $1.378.143 $1.078.591 §$1.758416 $27.834 $29.738.05

NOTE 12 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

At June 30, 1997, ecmployces of the School Board have accumulated and vested $14,535,034 of cmploycee Ieatc
benefits, which was computed in accordance with GASB Codification Section C60. Of this amount $922,449 15
expected to be paid from current available resources and is recorded in the general fund. The balance of the habihity
of $13,612,585 is recorded within the gencral long-term debt account group since the amount 1s not expected to b
paid from current available resources.
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NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

.................... TRS..,
Regular Plan A LSERS Total
Employee contribution $ 9945215 $ 213,493 $ 868,358 $ 11,027,000
Employcer contribution 20,542 813 382415 819 859 21,745 087
Total covered current-year payroll 126,029,529 2,346,100 13,604,323 142 039 958

Although contributions arc determined by statute, actuarial contributions are determined for the Systems. For the
year ended Junc 30, 1997, the Systems' (TRS and LSERS) actuarially requited contribution from all sources we-
$401.0 million and $12.9 million, respectively. The required contribution represents 17.79 and 6.12 percent
respectively, of salaries for the year ended Junc 30, 1997,

The "pension benefnt obhgation” is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension benefits
adjusted for the cffects of projecied salary increascs and step-rate benefits, estimatzed to be payable in the future o-
a result of cmployee scrvice to-date. The measure, which is the actuarial present value of credited projected benefit-
is intended to help users assess the Systems' funding status on a going-concern basis, assess progress made 1
accumulating sufficicnt asscts to pay benefits when duc, and make comparisons among PERS and employers. Tl
sysiems do not make scparatc measurements of asscts and pension benefit obligations for individual employers.

The pension benefit obligations at June 30, 1997 for the Systems, cach as a whole, the Systems' net assets availabl.
for benefits on that date (valued at market), and the resulting unfunded (over funded) pension benefit obligation-
were as follows:

School
Teachors' Employees'
Retirement Retirement
Sysiem Svstem
Pension Benefit Obhigation $11,232.762,000 § 970569414
Net Asscts Available for Benefits 7.056.608.000 1.089.962 911
Unfunded (Over Funded) Pension Benefit Obligation $ 4,176,154.000  ${ 119393497,

The School Board's tofal actuarially determined contribution requirements as a percentage of total contribution-
required of all entatics for the year ended June 30, 1997 were as follows:

Teachers' Retirement System 5.69%
School Employecs' Retirement System 6.47%

Ten-year historical trend information showing each System's progress is accumulating sufficient asscls to pa
benefits when duc 1s presented in cach System's respective June 30, 1997 annual financial report. The reports ca
be obtamed by telephoning or writing to the following:
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NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

With respect 1o the Teachers' Retirement System Regular Plan, normal retirement is at age sixty with ten years of
scrvice, or at any age with twenly years of service. The formula for annual maximum rctircment benefits s

generally 2 percent (with less than twenty-five years of service) or 2.5 percent (with twenty-five or more ycars of

service) times the years of creditable service times the average salary of the thirty-six highest successive monthi:
(plus $300 applicable to persons becoming members prior (o July 1, 1986).

Under the Teachers' Retirement Systiem Plan A, normal retirement 1s generally at any age with 30 or more years of

creditable service, at age {ifty-five with at least twenty-five years of creditable service and at age sixty with at lcas:
ten years of creditable service. The retirement benefit formula is generally 3 percent times the years of creditablc
scrvice times the average salary of the thirty-six highest successive months plus $24 per year of scrvice.

Employees participating in the School Employces' Retirement System are cligible for normal retirement after thirly
years of scrvice, or after twenty-five years of service at age fifty-five or after ten years of service at age sixty, The
maximum rctirement allowance 1s computed at 2.5 percent times the highest thirty-six months of avcrage salary.
times the years of scrvice plus a supplement of $2.00 per month times the years of scrvice,

Benelits of the systemis are funded by employee and cmploycr contributions. The contribution rates (as a percentagy
of covcered salarics) are established by state law as follows:

Fmployee Enmployer

Louisiana Teachers' Retirement System:;
Regular 8.00% 16.30%
Plan A 9.10% 16.30%
Louisiana School Employces' Retirement Sysiem 0.35% 6.00%

The School Board's employer contribution for the TRS, as provided by state law, is funded by the statc of Lowsian:
through annual appropriations, by deductions from local ad valorem taxes, and by remultances from the Schoo.
Board. For th¢ LSERS, the School Board's employer contribution is funded by the statc of Louisiana through annual
appropriations.

In addition, the employer does not remit to the Teachers' Retirement System, Regular Plan or Plan A, the employer's
contribution for the profecssional mprovement program (PIP) portion of payroll. The PIP contribution 1s mads
dircctly 1o the Retirement System by the state of Lowsiana.

Bencfits granted by the retirement systems are guaranteccd by the stalc of Louisiana undcr provisions of the
1.ouisiana Constitution of 1974. The total payroll for the School Board for the year ended June 30, 1997 amounted
to $15&,752,355. The employee and employer contributions and total current-year payroll of covered employees
for 1997 arc as follows:
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NOTE 7 - RECEIVABLES

The receivables of $6,896,350 at June 30, 1997, are as {ollows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

Special Debt  Fiduciary-
General Revenue Service  Trust and
Class of Reccivables Fund Funds Funds Agency Total
Intergovernmental - grants:
Local:
Sales Tax $3,793.103  $ - 8 - 3 - $3,793,103
Statc 501,225 478 884 - - 080,109
Federal 200,809 1,771,532 . - 1,972.34]
Other accounts 64,798 4919 - - 69,717
Intcrest 25.164 - 13.981 41,935 81.080
Total $4.585099  $2.255335 $13981  $41.935 $6.896,350
NOTE 8 - FIXED ASSETS
The changes 1n gencral fixed assets arc as follows:
Balance Balance
July 1, 1996 Additions Deletions  Junc 30, 1997
Land $ 5,168,136 $ - $ - % 5,168.13¢
Buldings and improvements 141,333,336 5,235,629 - 146,568,965
FFurniture and cquipment 32,333,821 2.899 081 50,642 35,182,260
Transportation cquipment 16,448 202 979 509 - 17427711
Total $195,283 495 $9.114.219 $50,642 $204,347,072

NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Substantially all School Board ecmployces participate in either the Teachers' Retirement System or the Schoo!
Employces' Retirement System (the Systems), which are cost-sharing, multiple-ecmployer public employec retirement
systems (PERS). Each system 1s administered and controlled at the state level by a separaltc board of trustecs, witl
contribution rates and benefit provisions approved by the Lowsiana Legislature.  Participation in the Teacher ™
Retirement System 1s divided into two plans - the Teachers' Regular Plan and the Tcachers' Plan A, In gencral
profcssional employees (such as tcachers and principals) and lunchroom workers ar¢ members of the Louisian:
Teachers' Retirement System (TRS); other employcees, such as custodial personnel and bus drivers, are members of
the Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System (LSERS).  Generally, all full-time employees arc cligible (o
parlicipate in the sysicm,
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NOTE 5 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Confinued)

Even though the pledged sccuritics arc considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the provisions of GASH
Statement 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposcs a statutory requirement on the custodial bank 1o advertise
and scll the pledged sccuritics within 10 days of being notified by the School Board that the fiscal agent has failed
1o pay depostted funds upon demand.

The School Board maintains a sweep account for the operating funds of the School Board. Each fund's cash account
1s swept daily for excess cash. Excess amounts arc invested in an overnight repurchasc agreement which is invested
in Uniicd States government (rcasury bills, treasury nolcs, and cerlificates of deposit,  The U. S. governmen:
investments arc held in the School Board's name through a book-entry systemt at the Federal Rescrve Bant.
therefore, these investments were considercd o be Category | which includes investments that are collateralizcd
with sccuritics held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or its safekeeping agent in the Schoa
Board's namec. In accordance with GASB Statement 3, which states that repurchase agrecements arc similar to
collatcralized deposits, the School Board treats these repurchase agreements as deposits.

NOTE 6 - INVESTMENTS
Investments are categorized into these three categories of credit risk:

1. Insured or registered, or securitics held by the School Board or its agent in the School Board's name.

2. Uninsurcd and unrcgistered, with securities held by the counter party's trust department or agent i the
School Board's name.

3. Uninsured and unrcgistered, with sccuntics held by the counter party, or by s trust department or agcul
but not in the School Board's namec.

At ycar cnd, the School Board investment balances included only investments not subject 1o categorization s
follows:

Carrying Amount Tolal

Fair Carrying

Valuc Cost Amounl
Cash held in State Treasury $ - § 70,582 § 70,58
Deferred compensation plan _3.818.19] . 3.8[8.19]
Sub 1otal 3,818.19] 70,582 3,888,773
Add: deposits reclassified 10 investments (see note 5) - 4.023.119 4,023,711
Total investments per stalcment A $3.818.191  $4.093,701 $7.911 89"
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NOTE 4 - LEVIED TAXES (Continued)

The following 1s a summary of authorized and levied (iax rate per $1,000 Asscssed Value) ad valorem taxes:

Datc of Voter Authorized Leviced Expiration
Parish-widc taxes _Approval Millage Millage Datc
Constitutional Statutory 5.00 9.64 Statutory
Operation and Maintenance Jan. 16, 1993 12.67 12.67 2003
Opcration and Maintenance Jan. 16, 1993 19.26 19.26 2003
Construction Jan, 16, 1993 7.71 71.71 2003
Bond and Intcrest May 4, 1985 Variablc 5.30 2005

The difference between authorized and levied millages arc the result of the reassessment of taxable property require.d
by Article 7, Scction 23 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974,

NOTE 5 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

At June 30, 1997, the School Board has cash and cash cquivalents (book balances) totaling $47,902,318 as follows

Demand deposit $ 15021
Intcrest-bearing demand deposits 47.602. 431
Timc deposits 4.172.78%
Total deposits 51,925,437
Lcss: deposits reclassified to investments (sec Note 6) 4023114
Total cash and cash equivalents per Statement A $47.902 31X

These depostts are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the resulting bavik
balances) must be scoured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securitics owned by the fiscal agent banl,
The market value of the pledged securitics plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times cqual the amount o
deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holdims:
or custodial bank that 1s mutually acceptable to both partics.

At year-cnd, the School Board's carrying amount of deposits was $51,925,437 and the bank balance wi
$59,963,220. Of the bank balance, $841,029 was covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held b
the School Board's agent in the School Board's name (GASB Category 1). $59.,071,582 was collateralized witl
sccuritics held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not in the School Board's nanic
(GASB Category 3). The remaining balance of $50,609 is not secured by the pledee of securities and is a violation
of state law.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

NOTE 4 - LEVIED TAXES (Continued)

Property Tax Calendar

Assessment dale January 1, 1996
Levy date Not later than Junc 1, 1996
Tax bills mailcd On or about December 1, 1996
Total taxcs arc duc Dcecember 31, 1996
Licn date January 1, 1997
Penalties and interest arc added January 1, 1997
Tax salc About Junc 1, 1997

Assessed values are cstablished by the Caddo Parish Tax Asscssor cach year on a uniform basis at the followin;:
ratios of asscssed value to fair market valuc.

10% land 15% machinery
10% residential improvements ] 5% commcreial improvements
15% indusirial improvements 25% public service propertics, excluding land

A revaluation of all propertly is required after 1978 to be completed no less than every four years. The las
revaluation was completed for the roll of January 1, 1996. Total assessed valuc was $088.098.350 for calendar ycar
1996. Louisiana statc law exempts the first $7,500 of asscssed valuc of a taxpayer's primary residence from parish
properly taxes. This homestead cxemption was $266,816,990 of the assessed valuc in calendar ycar 1996.

Statc law requires the Sheriff to collect propertly taxes in the calendar year in which the asscssment 15 mad.
Propertly taxes become delinquent January 1 of the following year. If taxes arc not patd by the duc datc, taxcs bea
interest at the rate of 1.25 percent per month unti! the taxes are paid.  Afler notice is given to the delinquein
taxpayers, the Sheriff is required by the Constitution of the State of Louisiana 1o scll the least quantity of property
nccessary to settle the taxes and interest owed.

All property taxcs arc recorded in the general fund, debt service fund and capital projects fund on the basis explam.d
in notc 1. Revenues in such Tunds are recognized in the accounting period in which they become measurable andd
available. Property taxcs are considered measurable in the calendar year of the tax iovy.

Delinquent taxes considered to be uncollectible arc not recorded as revenucs.  Properly taxcs rcceivable arc
considered available because they are substantially collected within 60 days subscquent to year end.

All 1996 property taxed that had not been received as of June 30, 1997 were writien off as uncollectible. The tax
roll is not preparcd by the tax assessor until November of cach year; therefore, the amount of 1997 properly taxcs
to be collected within the next year is not known. As a result, no property tax receivable for 1997 taxes s includd
on the accompanying combined balance sheet.

28




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, 1.ouisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

NOTE 2 - FUND DEFICITS

The following individual funds had a deficit in fund balance/retained carnings at June 30, 1997:

Deficit
Fund Amount
Capital Project Fund $675,056
Proprictary Fund - Intecrnal Service Fund 498,349

Management expects these deficits 1o correct in the 1997-1998 fiscal year through transfers from the general fund
NOTE 3 - EXPENDITURES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

The following individual funds had actual cxpenditures over budgeted expenditures for the year ended June 30
1997:

Unfavorablc
Fund Budget Actual __Variance

General Fund

School Administration $13,304,281  $13,474 336 $170,055

Communitly Service Programs - 10,507 10,507
Special Revenue Funds

Special Education 2,231,308 2,335,843 104,535

8G Statc Fund 1,064,379 1,081,529 17,150

Adull Education 335,799 346,162 10,363

Child Nutrition Program 17,103,510 17,242,622 139112

JROTC Carcer Academy 250,000 204,505 14,565
Dcbt Service Fund

Interest and bank charges 1,453,785 1,471,160 17,373

NOTE 4 - LEVIED TAXES

The School Board levies taxes on real and business personal property located within Caddo Parish's boundarics
Property faxcs arc levied by the School Board on property values assessed by the Caddo Pansh Tax Asscssor and
approved by the state of Louisiana Tax Commission.

The Caddo Parish Sheriff's Office bills and collects property taxes for the School Board. Collections arc remitic.
{o the School Board monthly.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

R. MEMORANDUM ONLY - TOTAL COLUMNS

The total columns on the combined statements are captioned Memorandum Only to indicate that they are
presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position, results
of opcrations or cash flows i accordance with gencrally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such dat
comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

S. ADOPTION OF GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 1993, GASB issued Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprictan
Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprictary Fund Accounting” (GASB 20), which discusses
the application of authoritative accounting pronouncements for proprietary accouniing and other funds tha
usc propriclary accounting.

The School Board was required to adopt GASB 20 in fiscal year 1995. GASB 20 allows the School Board te
clcet to apply all Fiancial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issucd after November 30
1989, excepl for those that conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, or 1o apply all GASH
pronouncements and only FASB pronouncements issued before November 30, 1989. The Schoo! Board ha-

clected to apply all GASB pronouncements and only FASB pronouncements issued before November 30,
1989

T. NEW APPLICABLE GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

In November 1994, the GASB 1ssued Statement No. 27, "Accounting for Pensions by Statc and Local
Governmental Employers” (GASB 27). GASB 27 prescribes changes in pension accounting and disclosure
requirements for employers participating in single employer/agent multiple defined benefit plans, cost sharing
multiple ¢mployer defined benefit plans, and defined contribution plans. The School Board sponsors
multiple-cmployer defined benefit pension plan. GASB 27 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June
15,1997, The School Board has not yet determined the effects of adoption of GASB 27,

U. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requites
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of asscts and liabilitics and
disclosure of contingent asscts and liabilitics at the date of the financial statements and the reporicd amounts
of revenues, expenditures, expenses, and other financing sources and uses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimatces.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, l.ouisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

N. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

All other interfund transactions arc reported as transfers. Nonrccurring or non-routing permanent transfers of
cquity arc reported as residual equity transfers. Al other interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers.

0. SALES TAXES

The School Board receives sales tax revenuc from the following two sales tax:

The voters of Caddo Parish approved on Junc 6, 1967, a onc-half of onc percent (V2%) parish-wide salcs
tax 10 be used 10 supplement salarics of teachers of Caddo Parish and for the operation of public schools
in Caddo Parish.

The voters of Caddo Parish approved on May 27, 1969, a one-half of onc percent ((2%) parish-wide sales
tax to be used to supplement salarics of teachers of Caddo Parish and for the operation of public schools
in Caddo Parish.

The votcrs of Caddo Parish approved on May 4, 1985, a onc-half of onc percent (42%) parish-wide sales
tax to be used to supplement salarics of tcachers and other school board employees and for the operation
of public schools in Caddo Parish.

P. CLAIMS AND JUDGEMENTS

LLosses resulting {from claims and judgements arc cstimated in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 10. The liability for such losses 1s recorded 1n the governmental funds for the
amount that will be liqmidated with expendable available financial resources. The remainder of the habilits

1s recorded n the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. Incurred but not reported claims as of Junc 30
1997 have been considered in determining the accrued hability.

Q. DEFERRED REVENUES

The School Board reports deferred revenues on i1is combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when
resources arc reccived by the School Board before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are
reccived prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures, In subsequent persods, when the School Board has

a legal claim to the resources, the hiability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet
and the revenue 18 recognized.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, 1.ouisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
K. COMPENSATED ABSENCES (Continued)

All School Board employees carn from twelve to sixteen days of sick leave cach year, depending upon the
length of service. Sick leave can be accumulated without himitation. Upon retirement or death, unuscd
accumulated sick leave of up fo twenty-five days s paid to thc employec or 1o the employec's cstate at the
cmployee's current rate of pay. Under the Lowsiana Teachers' Retirecment System and the Louisiana Schoo!
Employecs' Retirement System, all unpaid sick leave 1s used in the retirement benefit computation as carned
SCIVICE.

Sabbatical leave may be granied for rest and recuperation and for professional and cultural improvement. Any
cmployee with a teaching certificate 1s cntitled, subject to approval by the School Board, to onc semester of
sabbatical leave afler three years of continuous service or two semesters of sabbatical leave after six or morc
years of contittuous service. Sabbatical lcave benefits are recorded as expenditures in the period paid.

The cost of current leave privileges, computed m accordance with GASB Coaodification Scetion C60, 15
reccognized as a current-year expenditure in the governmental funds when leave is actually taken or when
cmployecs (or heirs) are paid for accrued leave upon retirement or death, while the cost of leave privileges not
requiring current resources is recorded in the gencral long-term obligations account group. Leave benelits arc
bascd on accrucd Icave bencfits of employecs with ten years scrvice to a maximurn of twenty-five days for sick
lcave and thirty days for vacation at their current annual salary.

.. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

L.ong-term obligations expected to be financed from governmental funds arc reported in the general long-term
obligations account group. Expenditures for principal and interest payments for long-term obligations we
recognized in the governmental funds when duc.

M. FUND EQUITY

Reserves — Rescrves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditures or legally
scgregated for a specific future use.

Designations -— Designattons indicale a portion of the fund balance has becn scgregated to indicile
tentative plans for future financial resource use.

N. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures initially made from it that arc propcils

applicable to another fund arc recorded as cxpenditures in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of
expenditures in the fund that 1s reimbursed.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

H. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

During the course of operations, numcerous transactions occur between individual funds for services rendered
These receivables and payables are classified as due from other funds or duc to other funds on the balance
sheet. Short-term interfund loans are classtfied as interfund receivables/payables.

[. INVENTORIES AND PREPAID ITEMS

Inventory in the gencral fund consists of materials and supplics. Inventory ¢of the Child Nutrition Program
spceial revenue fund consists of supplies, food purchased by the Schoo! Board and commoditics granted by
the U. 8. Depariment of Agriculiure through the Louisiana Department of Agriculture and Forestry. The
commodities are recorded as revenues when received.

Matcrial, food and supplics arc accounted for on the consumption mcthod. All purchased inventory items arce
valued at cost (first-in, first-out), and commoditics arc assigned valucs bascd on information provided by the
U. 5. Department of Agriculture. Inventorics are equally offsct by a fund balance reserve which indicates that
these do not constitute "available spendable resources,” even though they are a component of total asscts.

Certain payments to vendors reflect cost applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepand
1ems.

J. FIXED ASSETS

Fixed asscts of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures at the time they are purchased or constructed,
and the related asscts are capitalized (reported) in the general fixed assets account group. Public domain or
infrastructurcs such as sidewalks and parking lots arc not capitalized. Depreciation has not been provided on
general fixed asscts nor has mterest been capitalized, All fixed asscts arc valued at actual historical cost or
cstimated historical cost, 1f actual historical cost is not available. Donated fixed assets are valued at their fair
markct valuc at the time of the donation.

K. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

All twelve-month employees carn from ten to twenty days of vacation icave cach year, depending on their
Iength of service with the School Board. Vacation leave may be accumulated up to one hundred and fifty
percent of their annual allotment. Upon termination, employces may be paid for up to thirty days of unuscd
vacation lcave,
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary junds arc accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurcment focus and use the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues arc recorded when carned and expenses are
rccorded at the time the liabilities are incurred. ' Whth this measurement focus, all asscts and all habilitics
associated with the operation of these funds arc mcluded on the balance sheet.

Fiduciary Funds

The agency fund 1s custodial in nature and docs not present results of operattons or have a measurcimcent
focus. Agency funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. This fund 1s used
1o account for assets that the School Board holds for others i an agency capacity:.

The nonexpendable trust fund is accounted for in essentially the same manner as the proprictary fund
using the same measurement focus and basis of accounting. Nonexpendable trust funds account for assets
of which the principal may not be spent.

E. BUDGETS

The School Board utilizes the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statcments:

]

About May 1, the Superintendent submits to the School Board a proposed operating budget {or the

fiscal ycar commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposcd expenditures
and sources of funding,

A public heanng is then conducicd afier proper official journal notification 10 obtain taxpive
COMMCNIS.

Prior to July 1, the budget s legally adopted by the School Board during public session.

The budget document for the general fund, debt service fund, and capital projects fund is structured
such that revenugs arc budgeted by source and appropriations by function. Special revenue funds e
budgcted by project. School Board policy prescribes that the level of budgetary control 1s at the
functional level for the gencral fund, debt service fund and capital projccts fund and at the fund oy ¢!l
for the special revenue funds. Legal requirements provide that cxpenditures may not oxcecd

appropnations in excess of five percent of the budgeted expenditures at the fund evel. Revisions to
the budget as cnacted on a functional level require School Board approval. Budget amounts sncludad
in the accompanying financial statements include the original adopted budget and amendment. The
School Board issucs a budget report at lcast annually that demonstrates legal compliance at the legq)
level of budgetary control.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continucd)

D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)

Revenues (Continued)

Ad valorem taxes reccivable are recorded in the year the taxes are due and payable. Ad valorem taxces
arc assessed on a calendar year basis and become delinquent on December 31, The taxes generally
arc collected in December, January, and February of the fiscal year.

Food scrvices incomge 1s recorded as revenue when collected.  All food services income applicable 1o
an accounting period 1s collccied during that accounting period.

Interest earnings on time deposits are recorded when the time deposits have maturcd and the interest
1s avallable. Interest mmcome on interest bearing demand deposits 1s recorded cach month whers
credited by the bank to the account.

Substantially all other revenues are recorded when they become available to the School Board.

Expenditures - Salaries are recorded as expenditures when carned.  Tcachers' salarics are carned
over a ninc-month period, but are paid over a twelve-month period.

Purchascs of various opcrating supplics arc recorded as expenditures in the accounting period they arc
purchased.

Compensated abscnces arc recognized as cxpenditures when lcave 1s actually taken or when
cmployces (or heirs) are paid for accrued leave upon rctircment or death, while the cost of lcavc
privilcges not requiring current resources 18 recorded mn the gencral long-term obligations account

group.
Principal and intercst on gencral long-term debt arc recognized when duc.

Substantially all other expenditures are recognized when the related fund hability has been incarred

Other Financing Sources (Uses) —— Operating transfers between funds that are not cxpecled to be repand
arc accounted for as other financing sources (uscs). Capital Icasc transactions, sale of fixed asscts, deb:
cxtinguishments, long-term debt proceeds, el cefcra also are accounted {or as other financing sources
(uses). These other financing sources (uscs) are recogmyzed at the time the underlying ¢vents oceur.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. FUND ACCOUNTING (Continued)

Fiduciary Funds — Fiduciary funds account for asscts held on behalf of outside partics, including other
governments, or on behalf of other funds within the School Board. Fiduciary funds include:

Agency Funds are vscd to account for assets held by the School Board as an agent for others,

The Nonexpendable Trust Fund 1s used to account for asscts held by the School Board 1n trust, of
which the principal may not be expended.

Account Groups

The general fixed assets account group is used to account for fixed asscls not accounted for in
propriciary or trust {funds.

The general long-term debt account group 1s usced 1o account for gencral long-1crm debt and certam
other liabilitics that arc not specific hiabilities of proprictary or trust funds.

D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Governmental Funds

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied 1o a fund 1s determuined by its measurement focus
Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modificd
accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting revenues are recognized when
susceptible to accrual (1.c., when they are "measurable and available™). "Measurable” mcans the amount
of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon
cnough thereafter 10 pay liabilities of the current period. The government considers all revenues available
if they arc collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures arc reccorded when the related fund
liability 1s incurred, except for unmaturcd interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when
duc, and certain compensated abscnces and claims and judgments which are recognized when the
obligations arc expected to be ligquidated with expendable available {inancial resources.

With this measurcment focus, only current assets and current habilitics are generally included on the
balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases and decreases n net current assels.
The governmental funds use the {ollowing practices n recording revenucs and expenditures:

Revenues —— Jedcral and state entitlements (which include statc cqualization and state revenug
sharing) arc recorded as unrestricted grants-in-aid when available and mcasurable. Federal and state
restricted grants arc recorded when the reimbursable expenditures have been icurred.

Federal commoditics arc recognized as revenucs in the accounting penod in which they are received
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, l.ouisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. FUND ACCOUNTING

The School Board uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position and the resulls of 11-

opcrations. Fun

d accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and 1o aid financial managemenit

by segrcgating transactions relating to certain government functions or activities.

A fund is a scparate accounting cntity with a sclf-balancing set of accounts. On the other hand, an account
group is a financial reporling device designed to provide accountability for certain asscts and liabthtics tha

are nol recorded 1

n the funds because they are not involved with the measurement of results of operations.

Funds of the Schoo! Board arc classificd into three categories: governmental, proprictary and fiduciary. In
turn, cach category is divided into separate fund types. The fund classifications and a description of cach
cxisting fund typc follow:

Governmen

tal Funds — Governmental funds account for all or most of the School Board's gencrat

activitics, including the collection and disbursement of specific or legally restricted monies, the acquistion
or constructlion of gencral fixed assets, and the servicing of general long-term debt.  Governmental {fund.

include:

1. Gen

eral Fund — the general operating fund of the School Board accounts for all financial

resources, except those required 1o be accounted for in other funds.

2. Special Revenue Funds — account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legalls
restricied 1o expenditures for specified purposes.

3. Deb

t Service Fund — accounts for transactions relating to resources retained and uscd for the

payment of principal and interest on those Jong-tcrm obligations recorded in the general long-tenn
obligations account group.

4, Cap

ital Projects Fund — accounts for financial resources reccived and used for the acquisttiorn:.

construction or improvement of capital facilitics not reported in other governmental funds.

Proprictary

Fund Type — Proprictary funds account for activitics similar 1o those found in the private

scctor, where the determination of net income 1s necessary or uscful to sound financial administration

Proprictary
togcther wit

unds differ from governmental funds in that their focus is on income measurcment, whicl
1 the maintenance of cquity, 1s an important financial indicalor. The School Board has onu

proprictary |
type:

‘und, which is an internal service fund. The following 1s the School Board's proprietary fundd

Internal Service Fund — An internal scrvice fund is used to account for the accumulation ol
resources for and the payment of benefits by the School Board's risk retention program.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Lowsiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying financial statements of the Caddo Parish School Board have been prepared in conformy
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental umts. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepied standard-setfing body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles.

B. REPORTING ENTITY

The Caddo Parish School Board was created by Louisiana Revised Statute (LSA-R.S.) 17:51 to provide public
cducation for the children within Caddo Parish. The School Board is authorized by LSA-R.S. 17:81 to
establish policics and regulations for its own governmcent consistent with the laws of the state of Louistana aud

the regulations of the Louisiana Board of Elementary and Sccondary Education. The School Board s
comprisced of twelve members who are elected from twelve districts for terms of four years.

The School Board operates seventy-five schools within the parish with a total enrollment of 49,578 students.
In comunction with the regular educational programs, somc of these schools offer special cducation and o
adult cducation programs. In addition, the School Board provides transportation and school food services o
the students.

GASB Statement 14 establishes criteria for determining the governmental reporting entity and component umits
that should be included within the reporting entity. Under provisions of this Statement, the School Board 1
considered a primary government, since it is a special purposc government that has a scparately clected
poverning body, is legally separate, and 1s fiscally independent of other state or local governments. As u~cd
in GASB Statcment 14, fiscally independent mcans that the Schoo! Board may, without the approval or conscnt
of another governmental entity, determine or modify its own budget, levy ils own taxcs or sct rales or charyes.
and 1ssuc bonded debt. The School Board also has no component units, defined by OASB Statement 144 &
other legally separate organizations for which the elected School Board members are financially accountable
There arc no other primary governments with which the School Board has a significant relationship.

Jointly Governed Organization

Caddo-Shreveport Sales and Use Tax Commission — The Commission is an independent agency responsible
for the collection, enforcement, and admunistration of sales and use laxes levied by the School Board and 1he
City of Shreveport. The Commission is considered a scparate accounting entity and issues financial statcmont-
scparate from thosc of the School Board. The School Board does not retain an ongotng {inancial mnlcrest ¢
rcsponsibility in its opcrations. The Commission is not considered a component unit of the School Board andd
i{s operations ar¢ not included in the accompanying financial statements. Financial statcments for the
Commission can be obtained from the Commission, Shreveport, Louisiana.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL. BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana
Statement E

Combined Statement of Cash Flows
All Proprietary Fund Types and Nonexpendable Trust Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997

PROPRIETARY
FUND - FIDUCIARY FUND -
INTERNAL  NONEXPENDABLE
SERVICE _TRUST TOTAL

CASH FLLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (10ss) $ {1,685,029) § 973,283 % (711,741,
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided (used) for operating

activities

ncrease (decreasej in payable (4,720,175) 0 (4,720,175

(Increase) decrease in receivable - 1,627 588 _ (41,935) 1,585 6463

Net cash provided {(used) for

operating activities d (4,777616) $ _ 931,348 $ (3 846 2G5:

CASH FLLOW FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transfers in $ 700,000 & 0_% 700,000

Net cash provided (used) for noncapital financing activities 5 700,000 $ 0 % 700,000
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Earnings on investments $ 141097 $ 69,818 $ 211,815

Purchase of investments 0 (1,764,100) (1,764,100,

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities § 1410997 $§ 0 {1,694282) §  (1552,78%;

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents $ (3,935,619) $ (762,934) % (4,698 553

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 5195686 763,265 5,958,051

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR $ 1,260,067 $ 331 $ 1,260,398

N C—

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.,
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings (Deficit)/Fund Balance -

All Proprietary Fund Types and Nonexpendable Trust Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Statement D
PROPRIETARY

FUND - FIDUCIARY FUND -

INTERNAL NONEXPENDABLE
_____SERVICE TRUST TOTAL

OPERATING REVENUE

Premiums $ 16,761,934 $ 0% 16,761,934
Fees _ 0 973,432 973,437
Total operating revenues $ 16,761,934 $ 073432 % 17,735,360

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administration 3 739,697 § 143 % 739,746
Claims | 17,707,366 0 17,707,360
Total operating expenses $ 18446963 $ 143 $ 18,447,117

Operating income (loss) $ (1,685,029) $ 073,283 $ (711,746,

NONOPERATING REVENUES

Earnings on investments 141,997 69,818 211,815
Income (loss) before operating transfers $ (1,643,032 % 1,043,101 § (499,937}

TRANSFERS FROM/(TO) OTHER FUNDS
Transfers in $ 700,000 % _ 0% 700,000
Transfers from/(to) other funds $ 700000 % 0% 700000
Nzt Income (loss) $ (843,032) $ 1,043,101 % 200,064

RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCE,
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR . 344683 763,265 1,107,945

RETAINED EARNINGS (Deficit)/FUND BALANCE,
AT END OF YEAR $  (498349)$ 1806366 % __ 1308017

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.

13




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual - All Governmental Funds - Capital Projects Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Statement C
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET = ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Local sources:
Taxes:
Ad valorem $ 5,322,600 $ 5547011 $ 224 411
Interest earnings 40,000 11,782 (28,218)
Other 0 28,675 28 675
State sources:

Other _ 394,500 372,115 {22,385)

Total revenues $ 5757100 % 5050583 & 202,483
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Support services:

General administration $ 297,600 $ 278,313 % 19,1867

Capital outlay 7,506,000 7,460,529 45471

Total expenditures $ 7803500 $  7,738842 % 64 6586
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES $ (2,046,400) $ (1,779,259) ¥ 267,141
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers in $ 1550000 $ 1,131,430 3 (418,570}

Total other financing sources (uses) P 1,550,000 § 1,131,430 $ _ (418,570

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ (496,400) $ (647,829) $ (151,42¢,
FUND BALANGES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 513038 1,002,412 _ 488,473
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 17539 $ 354583 §$ 337,044

(CONCLUDE D)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - All Governmental Funds - Debt Service Fund

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABL.E)
REVENUES |
Local sources:
Taxes:
Ad valorem $ 3,745,000 % 3,830,039 § 85,03%
Interest earnings 80,000 67,157 (12,84 3)
Total revenues $ 3,825000 3 3,897,196 % 72,195
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Suppoit services:

General administration $ 152,500 % 143,394 $ 9 10%

Debt service:

Principal retirement 2,525,000 2,625,000 0

Interest and bank charges 1,453,785 1,471,160 (17,375)

Total expenditures $ 4,131,285 % 4139554 $ (8,26Y)
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES $ (306,285) (242,358) $ 63,927
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ) 1,340,000 _ 1,340,937 937
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 1,033,715 $  1,098579 64,864

11

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997

Statement C

(CONTINUE(};




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - All Governmental Funds - Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997

REVENUES

Local sources:
interest earnings
Food services
Other

State sources:
Equalization
Other

Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction
General administration
Schoo! administration
Business services
Plant services
Student transportation services
Food services
Community service programs

Total expenditures

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out

Other sources-proceeds from the sale of fixed assets

Tota! other financing sources (uses)
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

Statement (.

VARIANCE

FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

$ 160,000 % 458 595 $ 208 5454
2,190,000 2,363,857 173,957

0 131,759 131,759

3,797,548 3,796,390 (1.158]
1,396,250 1,370,496 (25,75.4)
26,929 671 27.795.173 865 502

$ 34473469 $ 35916,370 % 1,442 901
$ 19,345,215 17,816,165 $ 1,529,050
365,326 419,477 (b4.151)
71,600 161,204 (89,6014)

0 25,548 (25,548

598,924 03,472 (33,54%)

0 54,162 (64,162)

17,103,510 17 242,420 (138,970
445 606,147 (605,702}

$ 36946020 $§ 36418595 $ H27 425
$ (2,472,551} % (602,225) $ 1,970,326
$ (35,138} ¥ {(131,430) $ (96,242}
0 1,232 1,232

b (35,138} $ (130,198) $ {95,060)
$ (2,5607,689) $ (632,423) $ 1,875,265
8,792,735 B8,792735 (

$_ 6285046 $

8160312 $ 1,875,260

—— ——-

(CONTINUE [))




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL. BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Funi Balances
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - All Governmental Funds - General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Statement C
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
____BUDGET . ACTUAL {(UNFAVORABLE)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR,

AS ORIGINALLY STATED $ 13,687,151 % 13,687,151 $ {)
PRIOR FERIOD ADJUSTMENT 4 115,978 4115 978 QO
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR,

AS RESTATED $ 17.803,120 $ 17,803,129 $ o
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR §; 11,765,365 L 15,045,189 b 3,279.8724

(CONTINUE[2)
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - All Governmental Funds - General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997

REVENUES
Local sources:
Taxes:
Ad valorem
Sales and use
interest earnings
Other
State sources:
f-qualization
Other
Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction
General administration
School administration
Business services
Plant services
Student transportation services
Central services
Community service prograins

Total expenditures

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operaling transfers out
Other sources-proceeds from the sale of fixed assets

Total Other Financing Sources (UJses)

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Statement C

VARIANCE

FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL _ (UNFAVORABLE)

$ 28684200 $ 29893921 $ 1,200,721
43,900,000 42,396,962 (1,503,038)
1,700,000 1,842,587 142,567
1,338,000 1,864,431 526,431
118,752,029 118,754,855 2 820
4,718,626 5,065,753 347,127
1,450,000 1,524,620 74,620

$ 200542855 $ 201,343,129 $ 800,274
$ 149,383,374 $ 147,863,706 $  1,519,66E
3,328,900 2,521,085 807,815
13,304,281 13,474,336 (170,055)
2,366,387 2,288,207 78,180
22,781,201 22,118,731 662.470
11,825,966 11,573,941 252 075
2,590,510 2,584,174 6,335

0 10,507 (10,507)

$ 205580619 $ 202,434,687 $  3,145932
$  (5,037,764) % (1,091,558) $ 3,946,206
$  (1,000,0000$  {1,700,000) $ (700,000;
i 0 33,618 33,618
$  (1,000,0000 %  (1,666,382) $_ (666,382

h (6,037,764} $

(2,757.940) $__ 3,279,824

(CONTINUE 1))




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances(Deficit)- All Governmental Fund Types

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Statement B

e e ok e v o o ke o ek e e e e ***G CJVE RN M E NTAL FUN Dsliitt'l'i o oy e iy e ol oy ol iy e e e Ay TOTAL

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL (MEMORANDUM
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE  PROJECTS ONLY)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operaling transfers in $ 0 % 0§ 0% 1131430 % 1,131,430
Operating transfers out (1,700,000) (131,430} 0 0 (1,831,420)
Other sources-proceeds from
the sale of fixed assels 33,618 1,232 0 0 34 .84L0
Tolal Other Financing Sources (Uses)  $ (1,666,382) $  (130,198) $ 0 $ 1,131,430 % {665 150)
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (2.757,940)  (632,423) (242,358) (1,677,468) (5,310,189)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR,
AS ORIGINALLY STATED $¢ 13687151 $ 8,792,735 $ 1,340,837 $ 1,002412 % 24,823,235
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 4115978 0 0 0 4,115,978
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR,
AS RESTATED ¢ 17,803,129 $ 8,792,735 $ 1340037 $ 1,002412 3 28,939,213

- UND BALANCES (Deficit) AT END OF YEAR $ __15,045189 $ 8160312 $ 1008579 $  (675,056) 3 23,625,024

(CONCLUDED)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL. BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances{Deficit)- Al Governmental Fund Types

For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Statement B

:H:**#*i*tﬁ*t****kﬁ*i*ﬁ*GCJVE RNMENTAL FUNDSI***:EI'**i*t**t**t*****th TOTAI.
SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL (MEMORANDUM
GENERAL.  ~ REVENUE  SERVICE PROJECTS __ONLY)
REVENUES
l.ocal sources:
Taxes:
Ad valorem $ 29,893,921 % 0§ 3830039 § 5547011 % 39270 471
Sales and use 42,396,962 0 O 0 42 3906 W4y
Interest earnings 1,842,687 458,595 67,157 11,782 2,380,121
Food services 0 2,363,957 0 0 2.363 957
Other 1,864,431 131,759 0 28,675 2.024 865
State sources:
Equalization 118,754 855 3,796,390 0 0 122,561,245
Other 5,065,753 1,370,496 0 372,115 6,805, 374
Federal sources 1624620 27795173 0 0 20,319,743
Total revenues $_ 201,343,129 $ 35916,370 $ 3,897196 $ 5,959 583 247 116278
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction:
Regular programs $ 89,028,826 % 887,676 % 0 % 0 89,916,502
Special programs 31,317,173 761,315 0 0 32,078,458
Other instruction 11,651,665 13,126,915 0 0 24,778 580
Support services:
Student services 7,576,520 1,160,574 0 0 8,737,094
Instructional staff support 8,280,522 1,879,685 0 0 10,164,207
General administration 2521085 419,477 143,394 278,313 3,302,269
School administration 13,474,336 161,204 0 0 13,635 L40
Business services 2,288,207 25,548 0 0 2.3137565
Plant services 22,118,731 83472 0 0 22,212 233
Student transporiation services 11,573,941 Hh4,162 0 0 11,626 103
Central services 2584 174 0 0 0 25084174
Food services O 17,242,420 0 0 17,242 420
Community service programs 10,607 606,147 0 0 616,054
Capital outlay 0 0 0 8,490,168 8 440168
Debt service:
Principal retirement 0 0 2,525,000 0 2,525,000
Interest and bank charges 2o 0 1,471,160 0 - 1.471,160
Total expenditures $ 202434687 $ 36418595 $ 4,139554 $ 8768481 % 251 761,317

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES

]

(1,091,558) $

G

.  w—

(502,225) $

(242,358) $

(2,808 898) $

_(4,645,039)

(CONTINUE D)




Statement A
PROPRIETARY ssocranxn ACCOUNT GROUPS** ***

FUNDS - FIDUCIARY- GENERAL GENERAL TOTAL
INTERNAL TRUST AND FIXED LONG-TERM (MEMORANDUM
SERVICE AGENCY ASSETS ___ _DEBT____ ONLY)

$ 1,758,416 § 27834 % 0% 0% 29,738,655
0 0 0 0 1,265,564

0 2 537,724 0 0 2537724

0 0 0 D 641,574

0 3,618,191 0 0 3,818,191

0 # 0 26,790,000 26,790,000

0 0 0 568,415 1,363,691

0 L 0 0 13,612,585 14.535,034
$ 1758416 $ 6,383,749 $ 0% 40,971,000 $ 80,690,433
$ 0 % 0% 204,347,072 % 0 204 347 072
(498,349) () 0 0 {498,349)

0 0 0 0 490,465

0 0 0 0 547

0 0 0 0 672,803

0 0 0 ¥ 1.008.579

0 1,806,366 0 0 1,806,366

0 0 0 0 7,312,984

| 0 0 0 O 4. 416,543
0 0 0 0 9630.103

-— - ]

0% 229284113

an - mmar

$ (498,349) $ 1,806,366 $ 204,347 072 %

$ 1260067 $__ 8190115 § 2043470728 _40971,000 3 309,974,5% 546

(CONCLUDED)




CADDQO PARISH SCHOOL. BOARD

Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and Account Groups

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
Liabilities:
Accounts, salaries and other payables
Interfund payable
Deposits due others
Deferred revenues
Deferred compensation payable
Bonds payable
Claims and judgemenis payable
Compensated absences payable

Total Liabilities

Equity and other credits
ivestment in general fixed asselts
Retained earnings (deficit)
Fund Balances: (deficit)
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Prepaid items
inventory
Debt service
Instructional enhancernent
Unreserved for:
Designated for contingencies
Designated for equipment replacement
Undesighated fund balance (deficit)

Total Equity and Other Credits

TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND
OTHER CREDITS

Shreveport, Louisiana

June 30, 1997

ol i e v e ol e e o o o ol e o ok e ke t*t*GOVERN MEh[TAL. FU N DS**! Rekhbrk bk kh AR A kh

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL

GENERAL. REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS

$ 25495671 ¢ 1.378,143 & 0% 1,078,501
0 1,265,564 0 (i

O 0 0 ()

0 641,574 0 ()

0 D 0 (!

O 0 0 (}

795,276 0 0 ()
922449 0 0 ____ NN

S 27,213,396 % 3,285,281 % 0% 1,078 541
$ 0% 0% D$ O
0 0 0 {0

37,412 441,656 0 11,307

547 § 0 0

478,481 201,312 0O {

0 O 1,098,579 0

0 0 0 0

5,735,281 1,677,703 O

2957 707 4158 836 0 C
_..8,535751 1,780,805, 0 _ (686453

$ 15045189 % 8,160312 % 1098579 % (675,0060)
§___ﬂﬁ§ﬁﬁj@_5_§ 11,445,593_ L_ 1,098 678 $ 403 636

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.

_— — -




Statement A

PROPRIETARY wxsirssk ACCOUNT GROUPSH**+r+4+
FUNDS - FIDUCIARY- GENERAL GENERAL TOTAL
INTERNAL TRUST AND FIXED LONG-TERM (MEMORANDUM
SERVICE ___ AGENCY ASSETS DEBT _______ ONLY)

$ 1,260,067 $ 2189570 % 0% 0% 47,902,318
0 5,958,610 0 0 7,911,892
0 41,935 0 0 6,896,350
0 0 0 O 1,265,564
0 0 0 0 679,803
D 0 D 0 547
O 0 204,347,072 0 204,347,072
0 0 0 1,098,579 1,098,578

3 ) 0 0 0 39,872,421 30,872,421

§ 1260067 § 81901158 204347,072§ _ 40971000 $ 309,074,545

(CONTINUED)




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and Account Groups
June 30, 1997

**ti*****ii#******h*i**GOVERN MENTAL FUNDS#******#**********H. (2

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL
GENERAL  REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 34,752,102 $ 8,088,046 § 308,008 $ 403 545
Investments 1,176,782 0 776,500 (
Receivables 4 585,099 2,255,335 13,081 (
Interfund receivable 1,265,564 0 0 0
Inventory 478,491 201,312 0 0
Prepaid items 547 0 0 0
Land, buildings and equipment 0 0 0 0
Other debits
Amount available in debt service fund ) 0 0 0
Amount to be provided for payment of general
long-term debt e ] 0 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS $ 42268585 % 11,445693 § 1098579 $ 403 638
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board Mecmbers

Caddo Partsh School Board
Shreveport, Loulsiana

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund
and account group statcments and schedules of Caddo Parish School Board, Shreveport, Louisiana, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 1997, as listed 1n the table of contents. Thesc general-purpose {inancial statements and the
combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules arc the responsibility of the Cadde
Parish School Board's management. Our responstbility 18 to express an opinton on these gencral-purpose financii!
statcments and the combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules based on our audut

We conducted our audit in accordance with gencrally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to
financial audits contamed in Government Auditing Standards, 1ssucd by the Comptroller General of the Umited
Statcs. Thosc standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whethur
the financial statements are free of material misstaliement. An audit includes examiming, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accountiy
principles used and sigmficant cstimates madc by managemcnt, as well as cvaluating the overall financial statcmenl
presentation. We belicve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the gencral-purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund and account group
staiements and schedules referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Caddo Parish School Board as of June 30, 1997, and the results of its operations and cash flows for
the proprictary fund and the nonexpendable trust fund for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 22, during the year ended Junc 30, 1997, the Caddo Parish School Board began accruing sal.s
tax colleeted by vendors in June of 1997 and remitied in July of 1997 in accordance with GASB Statement 22.

In accordance with Government Audiing Standards, we have also 1ssued, under scparate cover, our report datad
October 16, 1997 on our consideration of the Caddo Parish School Board's internal control over financial reporting
and our tests of 1ts compliance with certain provisions of laws, rcgulations, contracts and grants.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the gencral-purpose financial statements and the
combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules of Caddo Parish School Boaid
Shreveport, Louisiana, taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections listed 1n the table of contents e
prescnted for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the gencral-purposc financial statements
and the combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules of Caddo Parisl
School Board, Shreveport, Louisiana.  Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applhied
in the audit of the general-purposc financial statements, combining and individual fund and account group financial
statcments and schedules and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

/) Lher 7. 4’5}&/-.;,‘__ N

ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP

Monroc, Lowsiana
October 16, 1997

Member: American Institute o! Cerilied Public Accountants, Society ol Louisiana Cenified Public Accountants and
American Institute of Cerihied Public Accountants Division {lor CPA Firms




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

ELECTED OFFICIALS
JUNE 30, 1997

Present Term Began as a

Began Present Term Expires  Board Member
Mike Powell, President Janwary 1, 1995 December 31, 1998 November 1994
Jerry Tim Brooks, 1st Vice-President January 1, 1995  Dcceember 31, 1998 January 1982

Ron Adams, 2nd Vice-President

January 1, 1995

December 31, 1998

January 1995

Judy Boykin Janvary 1, 1995  December 31, 1998 January 1991
Wilhic D. Burton January 1, 1995  December 31, 1998 January 199]
Miles Hitcheock January 1, 1995  Deccember 31, 1998 January 1995
Mark Milam January 1, 1995 Deccember 31, 1998 January 1991

Alvin Mims
Mildred B. Pugh
Michacl J. Thibodeaux

Johnny Vance, Jr.
Sybil Walker

December 31, 1998
Dceember 31, 1998
Deccember 31, 1998
Deccember 31, 1998
Dccember 31, 1998

January 1, 1995
January 1, 1995
January 1, 1995

January 1995
September 1982

January 1987

January 1, 1995
January 1, 1995

January 199]
January 1995

SELECTED ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIALS

Jamcs E. Foster, Ed.[D.
Ollic Tyler

Superimtendent
Deputy Supcrintendent

Willie Henderson Assistant Superintendent - Human Resource Services

S. L. Slack Assistant Superintendent - Support Scrviees-
Dwight E. Collier Director of Auditing and Risk Management
Ben Wreyford Dircctor of Finang,
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The Caddo Parish School Board
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This Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting is presented to

CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

For its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996

Upon recommendation of the Association's Panel of Review which has judged that the Report
substantially conforms to principles and standards of ASBO's Centificate of Excellence Program

Ak OBl Lo 4 Koo

President Executive Director




Certificate of

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Caddo Parish School Board,

| _ouisiana

For its Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 1996

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Ofticers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
| standards in governmeni accounting

and financial reporting.

Ywda A dovits

President

oz o e

[-xecutive Director




Mr, Mike Powell, President
and Members of the Board
Caddo Parish School Board

L. Risk Management

The School Board maintains a combination of self-insurance and stop-loss coverage to manage its risk of loss fron
properly damage, theft and claims against employees. In addition, the School Board was partially self-insured for
group hospitalization, dental, disability and lifc isurance prior to April 1,-1997. A hst of msurance in foree s
included in Table 14. The fund balance of the gencral fund includes $5,735,281 designated for contingenceics
cstablhished in anticipation of possible losses from lawsuits and sclf-insurance liability including sclf-msurance run-
off claims,

M. Independent and Internal Audits

The report of our independent certified public accountants, Allen, Green & Company, LLP, follows as an inlcgral
componcent of this reporl.  Their audit of the gencral-purposc and individual fund and account group fmancial
statements and schedules was performed in accordance with gencrally accepicd auditing standards and, accordingls.
included a review of the School Board's system of budgelary and accounting controls.

In addition to the accounting control systems and the use of mdependent auditors, the School Board maintains a statl
of intcrnal auditors who conduct internal audits as well as special audits of the operations of the School Board.

N. Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achicvement for Excellence in Financial Reporting and the Association of School Business Officials Internationia]
(ASBQO) awarded a Certificate of Excellence 1n Financial Reporting to the School Board for its Comprchensinve
Annual Financial Report for the nine preceding fiscal yecars. To be awarded these certificaics, a government unit
must publish an casily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, whose contents
conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles an.d
applicable legal requircments. These certificates are valid for a period of one year only. We belicve our curreid
reporl confinucs to conform to the certificale requirements, and we are submitting it to both GFOA and ASBQ.

O. Acknowledgments
The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of the
entire staff of the Finance Department and the Internal Auditing Department. We want 1o express our apprectation

(o them for their assistance. We also thank the members of the School Board for their intercst and support i
planning and conducting the financial operations of the school system 1n a responsible and progressive manner,
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Mr. Mike Powell, President
and Mcmbers of the Board
Caddo Parish School Board

I.  Significant Changes in Financial Condition (Continued)

General fund expenditures increased $9,289,943 from the prior year amount of $193,144,744. This 1ncrcasc wis
primarily duc to the following:

. Teacher and employee salaries increased approximately $5,300,000. Related benefits also increascd
approximately $2,700,000.

Special revenue fund expenditures increased by $787.691 over the prior ycar amount of $35,630,904, This increase
is primarily duc to increased expenditures in Title I.

J. Cash Management

The School Board has an aggressive cash management program which consists of cxpediting the receipt of revenues
and prudently investing available cash in obligations collateralized by instruments issued by the United States
Government or federal government agencics created by an act of Congress or insured by the Federal Deposat
Insurance Corporation. The total amount of interest carned was $2,591,936 for the year ended Junc 30, 1997, This
was distributed as follows:

(iencral fund $1,842,587

Special revenue funds
Child Nutrition Program 456,457
Other funds 2,145
Debt service fund 67,157
Capital projects fund 11,782
Intecrnal service fund 141,997
Nonexpendable trust 69.81%
$2.591,93¢

K. Debt Administration

The ratio of net bonded debt 1o assessed valuation and the amount of bonded debt per capita arce useful indicators
of the School Board's debt position. Net bonded debt represents total bonded debt of $26,790,000 less fund equuy
in the debt service fund of $1,098.579. This data as of Junc 30, 1997 is as follows:

Ratio of Dcebt 10 Debt por
Amount Asscssed Value _Capita

Net direct general obligation bonded debt $25,691.421 2.6% $104

The School Board maintained a AAA bond rating from Standard and Poor's Corporation and an A+ bond rating fron
Moody's.
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Mr. Mikc Powcll, President

and Mcmbcers of the Board
Caddo Parish School Board

H. Financial Condition (Continued)

Capital Project Activilics

All major capital improvements are accounted for in the capital projects fund. During the year ended Junce 30, 1997
capital cxpenditures were made 1n the amount of $8,490,168. The majority of these funds were expended on the
renovation and expansion of existing schools. These projects were primarily funded with an allocation of properis
taxes in the amount of $5,547,011 intercst earnings on idle funds in the amount of $11,782, and state sources of
$372,115 and funds carricd over {rom prior ycars.

- A w

The School Board maintains an mtcrnal service fund 1o account for medical and dental sclf-insurance coverage
The School Board elccted to (erminate the self-insurance program in Aprnil 1997, All claims occurring after Aprit 1.
1997 were filed under a {ully insured plan. Accordingly, opcrating revenues 1o the fund decreased from $26,726.407
in 1996 1o $16,761.934 1n 1997, a decreasc of $9,964 473, Medical claims decreased from $25.635,613 mn 1996 10
$17,707,366 1n 1997, a decrcase of $7,928,247. All incurred but not reported claims at June 30, 1997 have beon
recorded as claims payable.

Nonexpendable Trust Aclivities

The Caddo Educational Excellence fund 15 a noncxpendable trust fund. The fund 1s used to account for the trust

principal and procecds from investment ecarnmgs related to boarding fecs from arca casinos as provided for
Louisiana Revised Statule LSA-R.S. 17:408.1.

Fiduciary Activitics

The school activity funds comprise approximaicly onc-half of the School Board's agency fund activitics. These
funds arc held by the individual schools of the School Board to support school activitics such as athlctics and othu
student organizations. All school activily funds are audited periodically by the internal audit staff. The defen od
compensation plan i1s the other major agency fund. This fund is administercd by First Financial Administrators, Ine
on bechalf of all participating employecs Lo defer a portion of their salary until future years.

I.  Significant Changes in Financial Condition

General fund revenucs increased by $9,030,163 from the prior year amount of $192 312,966, Changes were
primarily duc to the following;

«  Local sources increased due to a $347,505 mercase in sales tax revenucs and a $1,829,376 mncrease in
valorem taxes.

«  State revenues increased $5,964,612 due primarily to increases in minimum foundation payments and statc
pay supplements.

+  Federal sources increased duc 1o an increase in federal grant monics reccived.
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Mr. Mike Powell, President
and Mcmbers of the Board
Caddo Parish School Board

H. Financial Condition (Continued)

The unreserved fund balance i the gencral fund was maintained at an adequate level. The unreserved fund balance:
which includes a designation for contingencics of $5,735,281 and a designation for equipment replacement o

$257.707 at Junc 30, 1997, increascd from $13,018,547 to $14,528,739 or 11.6%. This unreserved fund balance
represents 7.2% of 1997-1998 gencral fund expenditures,

Special Revenue Activities

Special revenues of $35,916,370, including $5,106,886 of slatc sources, $2,954,311 of local sources, and
$27.795,173 of federal sources, were restricied for use in fifteen separate activitics. The Child Nutrition Progran,
fund accounts for $16,573,259 of thesc revenucs. The School Lunch Program is administered by this fund. The
majority of the remaining revenucs, $11,971,726, funded the Title T program for cducationally deprived students
The remainder was designed primarily to: (1) provide mstructional and related services to handicapped children and
(2) provide extended day remedial instruction including books, tapes and audiovisual hardware and software fo
general student population.

Special revenue funds expenditures by function were;

Increasce
Percent (Deccreasce)
Item Amount of Tolal From 1996
Instruction $17.816,165 48.9 $ 431.216
General admimistration 419,477 1.2 48 504
School admmistration 161,204 4 26,432
Business scrvices 25,548 1 3,079
Plant scrvices 93,472 3 37 080
Student transportation scrvices 54,162 1 53,094
Central services - 0 (  095)
Food scrvices 17,242 420 47.3 76,335
Communitly scrvice programs 606,147 1.7 120,272
Capital outlay - 0 L_7.026)
$36.418.595 100.0 $ 787,691
Dcbt Service Achivilics
The changes 1n gencral long-lerm obligations arc as follows:

July 1. 1996 Additions Payments Junc 30, 1997
Bonds payablc $29,315,000 N - $2,525,000 $26,790,000
Claims and judgments payable 594,343 - 25,928 568,415
Compcensated absences payable 13.317.935 294 650 - 13.612 5KS

$43,227.278 $294.650 $2.550.928 $40,971.,000
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Mr. Mike Powell, President
and Mcmbers of the Board
Caddo Parish School Board

G. Budgetary Controls

The School Board maintains budgctary controls 1o ensurc comphance with legal provisions embodied in the annui
appropriated budget approved by the School Board. Activities of the gencral fund, special revenuc funds, dett
service fund and the capital projects fund, arc included in the annual appropriated budget. School Board policy
prescribes that the level of budgetary control 1s at the functional level for the general fund, debt service fund and
capital projects fund and at the fund level for the special revenue funds.  Legal requirements provide thist
expenditures may not excced appropriations 1n excess of five percent of the budgceted expenditures at the fund level

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included 1 the {inancial section of this report, the School Board
continues 1o mect its responsibility for sound financial management.

1. Financial Condition
General Educational Functions

General cducational activities which arc accounted for in the gencral fund are supported principally by local taxes
and state entitlements. Direct {ederal aid 1s nominal 1n the gencral fund, but substantial sums arc made available

to the Louisiana Department of Education which arc subscquently distributed to local cntitics.

revenucs are as follows:

General fund

Increasc

Percent (Decreasc)

Source Amount of Total From 199¢
Local $ 75,997.90] 37.75 $2,449,013
Statc 123,820,608 61.50 5,964,617
Federal ],.524.620 0.75 616,531
$201,343.129 100.00 $9.030,16%

General educational expenditures by function were as follows:
Increasc

Percent { Decreasc)

Item Amount of Total From 199¢
Instruction $147 863,706 73.04 $ 7.524,99:
(General administration 2,521,085 1.25 155,760
School administration 13,474,336 (.65 594 687
Business scrviees 2,288,207 1.13 222,381
Plant scrvices 22,118,731 10.93 882,50,
Student transportation services 11,573,941 5.71 ( 257,547
Central services 2.584.174 ]1.28 197,71
Community scrvice program 10,507 01 (4,800
Debt scrvices - 00 (25.74%8)
$202.434,687 100.60 $§ 9.289.945
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Mr. Mike Powell, President
and Mcmbers of the Board
Caddo Parish School Board

E. Major Initiatives (Continued)
For the Future

Aging schools, hundreds of movable classrooms, technology, and teacher salarics have been major concerns for the
system. Based on the mput of a citizens advisory commtlice, an opportunity to address these issucs was placce]
before voters in October 1997, Voters approved four propositions to:

« Issuc $48 million 1n bonds to replace over 400 {emporary classrooms with permanent classroom wings

« Levy a ten-year, 6.28 mill property tax to yield approximately $4.3 million annually for buildiny
mainicnance

« Levy aten-year, 1.50 mill property tax to yield over $1 milhion annually for technology

* Levy a ten-ycar, 21.79 mill propertly tax to yteld approximately $15 million annually which will provid.
a 10% pay raisc to teachers and a 6% pay raisc to support employcces

As Caddo enters a period of extensive construction and recnovation of facilitics, it must keep ils emphasis orn
students.  Although voters bave approved additional funding, they are expecting accountability in the form o
increased student achievement. 1t will be the responsibility of leadership at every Ievel 1o direct resources to prepare
students for success in a lechnology oriented socicty.

F. Internal Control

Management of the School Board 1s responsible for cstablishing and maintaining an mternal control structurc
designed to ensure that the asscts of the School Board arc protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ¢nsure th.i
adequalc accounting data arc compiled to allow for the preparation of financial siatements in conformity wilh
gencrally accepled accounting principles,  The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolutc, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cosl
of a control should not cxceed the benefits likely 1o be dertved; and (2) the valuation of costs and bencfits requirces
cstimates and judgements by management.

We belicve that the School Board's accounting controls provide rcasonable assurance that crrors or irregularitics 1o
the financial statements are prevented or would be detected within a timely period by employees in the noriial
course of performing theiwr assigned functions.

As a recipicent of Federal, state and local financial assistance, the School Board also is responsible for ensuring thal
an adcquate intcrnal control structure 1s in place to ensurc compliance with applicable laws and regulations related

to those programs. This infernal control structure is subject to periedic evaluation by management and the mternal
audit stafl.

As a part of the School Board's single audit, described carlier, tests are made to determing the adequacy of the
internal control structure, including that portion related to federal awards programs, as well as to determine that the
Schoo!l Board has complicd with applicable laws and regulations. The results of the School Board's single audit fo
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 provided no instances of matcrial weaknesses in the internal control structurg
or signtficant violations of applicable laws and regulations.
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Mr. Mike Powell, President
angd Members of the Board
Caddo Parish Schiool Board

D. Economic Condition and Qutlook

Economic development continues at a brisk pace in Shreveporl and Caddo Parish. The valuc of building permuts
in the City of Shreveport year to date 15 26% ahcad of the same period last year. New business licenses i 1997
through Scptember is 748. This rate of growth should surpass last year's total of 825. Housing for senior cifizens
will help fuel construction activity during the next year. Thrce major new complexes representing a total of $18 9
million mvestiment have been recently announced.

The first major new shopping center in Shreveport in over 10 ycars, Bayou Walk, has opened in Southcast
Shreveport. A Kroger Superstore, Officc Max, Old Navy Store, and Barncs and Noble Bookstore are major tenants.
A Walmart Supcrcenter has opened at Yource and Berl Kouns and a second Shreveport Supercenter has been
announced for the growing Pines Road corridor. Numerous restaurants have opened and others are under
construction. Among thosc are Chilis, On the Border, Lone Star Steakhouse, Posadas, Applebec's, Dixic Roadhouss.
and Copeland's of New Orleans.

Willis Knighton Health Sysicm has begun construction of its $50 million hospital to be located at Yource and B
Kouns. That facility will have approximatcly 350 employecs.

The entertainment and tourism industry continucs to grow. A $138 million gaming/rctail/hotel/restaurant compl.
(0 be constructed on the Shreveport Riverfront has been announced.  Another recent announcement is the
construction of a seventcen-theater cinema complex n southeast Shreveport.

E. Major Initiatives

For the Year

Major projects completed or begun by the school systent in 1996-97 were:

- Electnical upgrades at 22 schools

- A Technology Tramning Center and a Technical Library
- Asbestos Abatement at Captain Shreve

- Roofing at Hillsdale, Judson, and Sunsct Acres

- Paving at Byrd High School

- Replacement of sixieen school buses
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Mr. Mike Powcll, President
and Mcembers of the Board
Caddo Parish School Board

B. CAFR (Continued)

Combining statcments arc presented when a School Board has more than one fund of a given fund type. Variou-
statements are also usced to demonstrate finance related legal and contractual compliance, present other information
deemed uscful, and provide details of data summarized in the financial statements.

(3) The Statistical Scction. Included 1n this scction are a number of tables of unaudited data depicting the financral
history, demographics and other miscellancous information of the Caddo Parish School Board for the past ten ycars

The Schoot Board 1s required 1o undergo an annual single audif in conformity with the provisions of the Single Aud
Act Amcndments of 1996 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, 1.ocal
Governments, and Non-Profit Orgamizations. Information related to this single audit, includes the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards, findings and recominendations, if applicable, and auditors’ reporls on mteins!
control and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The single audit report 1s i1ssucd scparately from this
Comprchensive Annual Financial Report.

The School Board provides a full range of cducational scrvices appropriate to grade levels K through 12, Thesc
include regular and cnriched academic cducation, special cducation for handicapped youngsters, occupationa’
cducation, and many individualized programs such as spccialized instruction for disadvantaged students and thosc
with limited English proficiency. These basic programs arc supplemented by a wide varicty of offerings mn the fin.
arls and athletics.

C. Reporting Entity

The report includes all entitics or organizations that arc required 1o be included 1n the School Board's reporting
entity. The basic criteria for determining whether a governmental department, agency, institution, commisston
public authority, or other governmental organization should be included in a governmental unit's reporting entits
1s {inancial accountability. Financial accountability includes the appomtment of a voling majority of the
organization's governing body and cither the ability of the primary government to imposc 1ts will on the organizatio:
or if there 1s a financial benefit/burden relationship. 1n addition, an organization which 1s fiscally dependent on the
primary government should be included in its reporting cntity.

The financial statements present the Caddo Parish School Board (the primary government). Based on the cenitenia
there arc no componcent units included in the Schoo! Board's reportling cntity.

Caddo-Shreveport Sales and Use Tax Commission - The Commission is an indepeadent agency responsible for the
collection, enforcement, and administration of sales and use taxes levied by the School Board and the City o
Shreveport. The Commission 1s considered a separate reporting entity and 1ssucs financial statements separate fromn
thosc of the School Board. The School Board docs not retain an ongoing financial interest or responsibility i s
opcrations. The Comnnssion 1s not considered a component urut of the School Board and its opcrations are no
included in the accompanying financial statecments.
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December 10, 1997

Mr. Mike Powcll, President

and Mecmbers of the Board
Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Dear Board Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Caddo Parish School Board (School Board:
for the year ended Junc 30, 1997, is submitied herewith.  This report has been prepared th
Finance Department personnel following the guidelines recommended by the Assoctation of
School Business Officials International and the Government Finance Officers Association o
the United Statcs and Canada.

A. Management Responsibility

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the compicieness and fairness of tfsw
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the School Board.  To the best of our
knowledge and belicf, the encloscd data 1s accurate in all material respects and arc reported
a manner designed Lo present fairly the financial posilion and results of operations of the varicus
funds and account groups of the School Board. Al disclosures necessary 1o cnable the reads
to gain an understanding of the School Beard's financial activitics have been included.

B. CAFR
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) consists of three parts:

(1) The Introductory Scection. This scction includes a letier of transmittal, information on
[inancial reporting achicvements, the School Board's organizational chart, recognition of b
clected officials of the School Board and a list of sclected admmistrative officials.

(2) The Financial Scction. The School Board's financial statements and schedules oo
presenicd m accordance with the financial reporting pyramud sct forth by the Governmcriu!
Accounting Standards Board. The School Board's complete financial operations are depicicd
in the general-purpose financial statements and thus present an overview of the School Board's
operations. Individual fund and account group stalements arc also presented along with the
combining statcments.

1
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